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Corporate Profile

RAREIT

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (“Sino Harbour” or
the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”)
is a property developer focused on residential properties
in Jiangxi Province, the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC”). The residential projects developing by the Group
are coupled with retail shops and other commercial office
premises.

The Group’s first project was Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan
(R E4IAENNE), a residential and commercial development
in Honggu Tan Central District of Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC. Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan occupies a
total site area of approximately 80,521 square metres (“sq.
m.”), comprising residential and commercial development
with an aggregate saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) of
approximately 304,839 sqg. m.

In 2009, the Group further explored and capitalised
opportunities in Fuzhou(#EJ1), Jiangxi Province, the PRC to
develop the second project Fuzhou Hua Cui T ing Yuan (#&
MNEEZEREBT ) . Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan occupies a total
site area of approximately 190,753 sqg. m. with a planned

aggregate saleable GFA of approximately 297,955 sq. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2012, the Group’s
joint venture Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co., Ltd. T 78
EHE E AR A F])started the pre-sale of Yichun Royal
Lake City (E&MHH) in Yichun, Jiangxi Province, the
PRC. Yichun Royal Lake City occupies a total site area of
approximately 607,084 sg. m. with a planned aggregate
saleable GFA of approximately 1,244,115 sq. m.

During the financial year ended 31 March 2013, the Group
commenced the development of Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City (F&Z#8\ESL ), in Nanchang, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC. Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City
occupies a total site area of approximately 719,547.5 sq.
m. with a planned aggregate saleable GFA of approximately
1,004,788 sq. m.

In March 2013, the Group succeeded in acquiring a parcel
of land with a total site area of approximately 20,482 sq.
m. for the development of Hangzhou Ganglian Sino Africa
Tower (fL)M /&8 F JEKE), in Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province,
the PRC. The land would be developed into a commercial
complex with office premises and retail shops.

Going forward, the Group will make an effort to replicate
its successful investment model in property projects with
strong potential elsewhere in the PRC in order to generate
better growth.
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Financial Highlights

MBHE
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WA the Company
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Chairlady’s Statement

ETEHE

Dear Shareholders,

| am pleased to present to the shareholders of the Company
(the “Shareholders”) the results in the financial performance
of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31
March 2015.

In the year ended 31 March 2015, revenue was mainly
derived from the sales of residential properties of Fuzhou
Hua Cui Ting Yuan (¥ ZE#EZfT ) and Nanchang Sino
Harbour Kaixuan City (F &Z88lhE ). Revenue from
commercial and residential properties increased steadily in
the year ended 31 March 2015 compared with the previous
financial year. During the year under review, being adversely
affected by the drop in net fair gain for investment properties,
profit attributable to owners of the Company amounted to
RMB92.9 million, representing a decrease of 35.4% over
that of last year.

Recently, new policies implemented by the PRC government
had provided property buyers with interest rate and tax
incentives. The PRC property market shows sign of
recovery, national housing sales area rose 7% year-on-year
in April 2015, the first increase since 2014.

The Group will grasp the opportunity by proactively
connecting the Group’s future properties to be released to
the market with mobile internet technologies and online-to-
offline (“OTO”) business model with intent to offer customers
with fresh experience of living.

Looking ahead, the Group will also simultaneously explore

and seek new business opportunities to broaden revenue
and improve profitability.
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Chairlady’s Statement

APPRECIATION

Finally, | would like to express my sincere appreciation
to our Shareholders and investors for your support and
confidence in the Group. | would also like to express my
gratitude to the Board for their guidance and to thank the
Group’s management and employees for their diligence and
contributions to the Group.

CHAN Heung Ling
Chairlady
Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmKk D

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
Revenue

During the year under review, the Group achieved revenue
of approximately RMB500.9 million mainly from the sales of
residential units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan (MM ZE2£ 2
B ) and Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City (F &&/83l
ek ). Revenue increased by approximately 5.2% over the
previous financial year. The total gross floor area (“GFA”)
of the residential and commercial properties (excluding car
parking spaces) sold in the year under review amounted to
approximately 83,119 sqg. m..

The following table sets out an analysis of the revenue for (i)
residential properties, (i) commercial properties, and (iii) car
parking spaces during the year under review:

EEE WD
L ON

WERE - AR EHGUAN OB ARBS00 BB « =
B 5k 1 4 N E R B B B WL 2 (B -
WA E— B R 5.2% - REBFEE SEERAEE
% (TomEsl) MRS (REER ) 1583119
FHk -

TREFIMEFEA () EEWE - () EEWER (i) FB
ZWADHT

Year ended Year ended
31 March 2015 31 March 2014 % change
BZ EEY
—2-1F “T-mEF
=ZR=+-H =A=1+-H )
LEE IEFE SEENL
() Residential i &=
- GFA sold (in sg. m.) —BEREEE ALK 78,103 83,130 -6.0%
- Average selling price (‘ASP”) —FHEE(GFARARE)
(RMB per sg. m.) 5,498 4,964 +10.8%
~ Revenue (approx. RMB'000) —WA(AEEFT) 429,375 412,622 +4.1%
(i) Commercial (i) EmE
- GFA sold (in sg. m.) —BEREEE (ALK 5,016 3,366 +49.0%
- ASP (RMB per sq. m.) - FHEE (BEARARE) 13,217 14,503 -8.9%
- Revenue (approx. RMB’000) -~ WA IARETFT) 66,296 48,818 +35.8%
(i) Car parking spaces (i) =L
- Revenue (approx. RMB’000) WA (FANRETFT) 5,203 14,899 -65.1%
Total revenue (approx. RMB’000) WABE(ARETFT) 500,874 476,339 +5.2%
Cost of Sales and Gross Profit Margin HEREARERZE

Cost of sales increased from approximately RMB324.2
million in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB365.4 million for the year under review. Due to the
increased construction cost in the year under review,
gross profit margin decreased from 31.9% for the previous
financial year to 27.1% for the year under review.
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Other Income

Other income decreased from approximately RMB107.9
million in the previous financial year to approximately
RMB62.7 million in the year under review. The decrease
mainly represented the decrease in net fair value gain of the
Group’s investment properties.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from
approximately RMB14.6 million in the previous financial
year to approximately RMB18.6 million in the year under
review. The higher selling expenses in the year under review
was mainly due to the increase in marketing expenses for
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City (5 &% i) and
Yichun Royal Lake City (B &4 ).

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased to approximately
RMB33.9 million in the year under review from approximately
RMB30.7 million in the previous financial year. The increase
was mainly attributable to the increase in staff cost.

Profit for the Year

As a cumulative effect of the foregoing factors, the Group
had recorded a profit before tax of approximately RMB144.4
million in the year under review, representing a decrease of
32.6% from approximately RMB214.4 million in the previous
financial year.

Profit for the year attributed to the owners of the Company
decreased by 35.4% from approximately RMB143.8 million
in the previous financial year to approximately RMB92.9
million in the year under review.

Interests in Joint Ventures

Interests in joint ventures increased from approximately
RMB182.4 million as at 31 March 2014 to RMB184.7 million
as at 31 March 2015. The increase represented the advance
to the joint venture by the Group for Yichun Royal Lake City
(EEH,) Phases 3 to 6.

Properties Held Under Development

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s properties held under
development increased to approximately RMB1,567.2 million
from approximately RMB1,154.5 million as at 31 March
2014. The increase mainly represented the transfer of the
land use rights consideration for a land parcel in Hangzhou,
Zhejiang Province, the PRC amounted approximately
RMB506.0 million from prepayment to properties held under
development during the year under review.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREHRRAMN

HAWA

S\ B _E— B 09 A RH07 O BT BB
WARM 627 BETT - MR ERAREERANEL A
FEKGEFEAD -

HERDHER

HERDHERR L - HFOARK 146 AETIEMER
BEENARK186BET - DEFEHEBARG IR
BN EEEIER E BRI TS E HE ARG INPTE

EEER

EREAH E—MFOARKI0.7AETENEREFE
WARMES9OBET - TEMNE TRAEZINAEL -

F R T

HRA ERRZEGAFE - AEEREEFERSRTA
BMOARKE1444BE T BE-FFOARK 21448
BT 32.6% °

RAREEANEBIEFREMNE E—MFOARK143.88 8
TORALELBEFENARKER2IOBETT - KiEA35.4% -

REEhEER

REELERZEEANR _T-—NF=A=T—"HOAR
K124 RBTEREN - T—AF=A=T—"HAR¥K
1847TEET - ZERIBRAEEREFMHRE=—H=E
FEREREELEIEL BT -

EEGEES

R-FB—RE=F=1+—B AEBEFEPYEHRN -Z
—ME=A=+—HBHARK1 1545 BETENEHDAR
#1,667.2 BB IT ° ©EIEINEE MR GBI AR BT
BIMNT 2 LI AREEBH ARES06.08 ELE R EIE
FEHEN BB R ERE -

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015




Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmKk D

Properties Held for Sale

Properties held for sale increased from approximately
RMB414.2 million as at 31 March 2014 to approximately
RMB695.3 million as at 31 March 2015. The increase was
mainly due to the transfer of the completed residential
property units of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Tuan (HE/HZEZEFERR)
Phase 3 to properties held for sale in the year under review.

Prepayments and Other Receivables

As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s prepayments and other
receivables amounted approximately RMB155.0 million,
compared to approximately RMB517.2 million as at 31
March 2014. The decrease mainly represented the transfer
of the land use rights consideration for a land parcel in
Hangzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC to properties held
under development during the year under review.

Accounts and Bill Payables, Accruals, Receipts in
Advance and Other Payables

Accounts and bill payables increased to approximately
RMB65.3 million as at 31 March 2015 from approximately
RMB24.0 million as at 31 March 2014 due to the completion
of Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Tuan (¥EJNZEXEEEFT) Phase 3 in
March 2015. Accounts and bill payables mainly comprised
amount payable to suppliers for construction costs incurred
in respect of the Group’s properties under development.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables mainly
comprise of the advance receipts from customers in respect
of deposit and prepayments for the Group’s property pre-
sales, and the accrued construction costs and project-
related expenses that are based on the progress of project
development but are not due for payment.

Accruals, receipts in advance and other payables increased
to approximately RMB954.9 million as at 31 March 2015
from approximately RMB653.2 million as at 31 March 2014.
The increase mainly represented the advance receipts
from customers for the deposits and prepayments for the
Group’s property pre-sales in the year under review, which
was partially offset by the receipts realised as revenue in the
same period.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

In the year ended 31 March 2015, the Group had recorded
a net cash inflow of approximately RMB153.9 million from
operating activities, mainly as a result of the profit before
working capital change and being partially offset by payment
of Enterprise Income Tax and Land Appreciation Tax.
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Net cash outflow from investing activities for the year under
review was approximately RMB13.5 million, which was
mainly due to the net increase in pledged and structured
bank deposits of approximately RMB9.6 million and the
advance of approximately RMB3.4 million to the joint venture
by the Group for Yichun Royal Lake City (EZ&#13H)
Phases 3 to 6.

Net cash outflow from financing activities for the year under
review was approximately RMB26.0 million representing
the payments of loan principals and interests and they were
partially offset by the receipts from new bank and other
loans.

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had cash and cash
equivalents of approximately RMB183.7 million (31 March
2014: approximately RMB67.8 million) and bank and other
loans of approximately RMB1,177.8 million (31 March 2014:
approximately RMB1,123.7 million).

BORROWINGS AND GEARING RATIO
Bank and other loans
As at 31 March 2015, the Group had bank and other loans

of approximately RMB1,177.8 million (2014: RMB1,123.7
million) as follows:

Management Discussion and Analysis
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2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Repayment period B

Within one year or on demand R—F Rz Bk 697,832 375,173

More than one year, but not exceeding —F U BT BBAF
five years 480,000 748,500
1,177,832 1,123,673

The bank loans were denominated in HK$ and RMB and
amounted to RMB439,332,000 as at 31 March 2015
and bore interest at floating rates ranging from 4.71% to
8.40% per annum. Other loans as at 31 March 2015 were
denominated in RMB and amounted RMB738,500,000
bearing interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.15% to 10.25%
per annum.

Gearing ratio

Gearing ratio is measured by borrowings (total amount of
bank and other loans) less related deposit collateral over
total equity. As at 31 March 2015, the Group’s gearing
ratio was 48.2%. The Group has implemented certain loan
management policies, which include close monitoring of the
gearing ratio and any changes in interest rates.

R-TE—RF=ZA=+—H ROIEFTAELREAREST
8 5 A AREEA39,332,0007T * WIENFEFL471%E
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmKk D

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Details of the contingent liabilities of the Group are set out in
note 31 of the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group are set out
in note 29 of the consolidated financial statements.

FUNDING AND TREASURY POLICIES

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy
with regard to its overall business operations. Historically,
we have met our capital expenditures, working capital and
other liquidity requirements principally from cash generated
from our operations and bank and other borrowings.
Going forward, we expect to fund our working capital,
capital expenditures and other capital requirements with a
combination of various sources, including but not limited
to cash generated from our operations, bank and other
borrowings as well as other external equity and debt
financing. The Group’s objectives are to maintain a prudent
financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits
and to maintain contingency plan for funding to ensure
that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet its liquidity
requirements.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried out in RMB
which is the functional currency of the Company and
most of the operating subsidiaries. Exposures to currency
exchange rates arise from certain of the Group’s cash and
bank balances which are denominated in HK dollars and
US Dollars. The Group does not use derivative financial
instruments to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly and believes
that there is no significant exposure on its foreign exchange
risk.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 March 2015, the Group pledged its property,
plant and equipment, investment properties, properties
held under development, properties held for sale, and
bank deposits of approximately RMB1,546.3 million
(2014: RMB1,853.7 million) to various banks and financial
institutions to secure loan facilities granted to the Group.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL
The Group did not have any material acquisition or disposal

of assets, subsidiaries and affiliated companies during the
year ended 31 March 2015.
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EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 March 2015, there were 147 employees in the
Group (831 March 2014: 158 employees). Staff remuneration
package are determined in connection with market conditions
and the performance of the individuals concerned, and are
subject to review from time to time. The Group also provides
other benefits including medical insurance, and grants
discretionary incentive bonuses to eligible staff based on their
performance and contributions to the Group.

COMPANY UPDATE
Property Pre-sales

The cumulative results for the pre-sale and delivery of
residential properties under each project up to 17 May 2015
are summarised as follows:

Nanchang Sino
Harbour

Kaixuan City
Phase 1 - Low-rise

BEERANN-5-

g
Estimated total GFA released for sale (total units) 19,558 50. m.
(152 units)
PRI (AE 2 SRR 10558 F %
(BEfiZA) (152{8)
Estimated total GFA pre-sold (total units) 15,182 5q. m.
(119 units)
[ RE BRERTE (BENAE) 15,182 F %
(119f8)
Percentage of pre-sale 78%
BERELE BHZT8
Pre-sale GFA (units pre-sold) not handed to buyers as 3,72459.m.
at 31 March 2015" (29 untt)
#E--REZAT-RWARNER, 3T FhA
ERERTAER(PREENYE) (29f@)
Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers as at RMB23.96 million
31 March 2015
HE-2-R5= AT REKRHERL ARB2%
EEERTESE BET
ASP per sq. m. * RMBG,434
BEAATHER: NER6434T0
Expected completion date Completed
B IEE BAT

ASP of the projects is computed as follows: Pre-sale value not
handed over to buyers divided by Pre-sale GFA not handed over
to buyers.

A Pre-sale value not handed over to buyers is computed as follows:
the year less those handed over to buyers during the year
(recognised as sales during the year).
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EREHRRAMN

BT REFMEE

RZE—RAF=ZA=+—"H AEEB147REI(=Z
—ME=A=+—H:158RKEI) - ETHMMSBLEEE
MERRARBEALZRIBMET » WEATRRL - A&
Bt EMmE THERF (BREEERR)  UREFERR
MEAREE 2 BEIAEERE TR FRISEBIEA -

RERIHEE
e S

BE_T-hFHEATLRH JBEBZEEMERELR
2 BeHERBEAT

Nanchang Sino Fuzhou Hua Cui Fuzhou Hua Cui Yichun Royal

Harbour Ting Yuan Ting Yuan Lake City

Kaixuan City Phase 2 Phase 3 Phase 2
Phase 1 - High-rise

HEEBE -1 - BNERER mNERER EEMH

BE -8 =# ]

61,128 50. m. 79,933 sg. m. H7AT7 sg. m. 59,863 s. m.

(616 unts) (550 units) (1,127 units) (684 units)

61,128F 5k 79933 F A% NAVEF 50863 F A K

(61618 (65018 (1,1278) (6841E)

33,590 5g. m. 71,478 sg. m. 100,770 sg. m. 48,450 sg. m.

(341 units) (522 units) (981 units) (538 units)

33507k T1478% AR 100,770F 7% 18450 FF K

(34118) (52218) (9811) (5381E)

58% 89% 86% 81%

BAL5 BH289 B8 B7281

33,590 sg. m. 9,552 50, m. 62,108 sg. m. 48,450 sg. m.

(341 unt) (39 units) (611 units) (538 units)

BI0TFHR 955 F 7k 62,108 75k 1BA0F AR

(34118) (30f8) (6111) (638 1)

RMB170.4 millon RMB70.58 million RMB318.42 milion RMB220.14 milion

NEB1704 ARET7058 ANEE318.42 AR 22014
BETL BETL BETL BET
RMB5,073 RMB7 380 RMB5,127 RMB4,544
ARB50737 AR 3897 ARES5127 7T NEB 45447
Q10Y2016 Completed Completed Q2CY2015
“ERE BRI BET “E-1f
E-FERT FIEERT

L RSEEZFUEEHENANT  WABREFZEBEE
FREBRAUABIERS 2 CASBTHEN -

A RABRBEPZEREBTRELHEAETEAMNT - FYEED
BINFAFFERERFACBRIEP (RFARRAHE) 28
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EEENmKk D

CONSTRUCTION PROGRESS AND DEVELOPING

PROJECTS

The Group will maintain our construction scale in order
to offer enough GFA available for sale and for delivery to

BREENFEKIEER

AEE SRR ERBE R e MR EEEFHE IR
- A ERFIER - R AREERZYMFRB N

support our growth in future. Currently, the Group’s property ™
projects under construction are as follows:
Expected
Name of Project Province City Planned GFA Completion Date
HE £ H#45 HWH REZEEE EHRTIAH
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan City Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 61,128 Q1CY2016
Phase 1 — high-rise residential annexed Commercial: 1,640
with commercial
EEZERIEN —H-aRBETEREE AN =) *= : 61,128 —E—RE
31,640 EF-FERT
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan Phase 1 —townhouses  Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 54,978 Q2CY2017
A 2 2B IE —Hl — Bk R 22 P E=]= T : 54,978 —E—+F
FE_FERT
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Phase 2 Jiangxi Nanchang Residential: 169,763 Q3CY2017
Commercial: 1,993
FAEEBEIEN — 5 AN} ma =€ : 169,763 —T—+tF
P2 1 1,993 FE=FERT
Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 Jiangxi Yichun Residential: 105,000 Q2CY2015
BEEHH 5 i) HE = : 105,000 —T-hF

The Group will continue to release properties in Fuzhou Hua
Cui Ting Yuan Phase 3, Yichun Royal Lake City Phase 2 and
Nanchang Sino Harbour Kaixuan City Phase 1 for sale and

pre-sales.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015
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LAND BANK

As at 31 March 2015, the Group had land bank with total
Planned Saleable GFA of approximately 2,773,231 sg. m. in
5 cities in the PRC.

Management Discussion and Analysis

EREHRRAMN

Lt

R-ZE—RF=-A=1+—8B AEERXRHBEREMRTHEE
ARBIR EEEMBL /2,773,231 TR Z LM

Planned

Saleable GFA

RETE

EEAEE

(sq. m.)

(FFFK)

Completed properties held for sales BERE2ERITYE 166,063

Properties under development EEEGEE IS 394,502

Properties held for future development BERRFE 2 W3 2,212,666

Total #Et 2,773,231
FUTURE OUTLOOK REBE

The People’s Bank of China (“PBOC”) reduced the one-
year lending rate 0.25 percentage point to 5.1 percent and
cut the one-year deposit rate by the same amount to 2.25
percent effective on 11 May 2015, it was the third reduction
since November 2014. Furthermore, in accordance with the
joint statement issued by the PBOC, the Ministry of Housing
and Urban-Rural Development and the Banking Regulatory
Commission on 30 March 2015, buyers of second homes
would be required to make a minimum down payment of
40%, down from the previous 60%, as part of efforts to
encourage upgraders to take the plunge. Property owners
are also exempt from paying a business tax on the sale
of an ordinary home if they have owned it for at least two
years, down from the previous minimum of five years under
the Notice on the Amendments to Business Tax Policies on
Individual Housing Transfer issued by Ministry of Finance
and State Administration of Taxation on 30 March 2015.

The moves by the PRC government recently would boost
the property market in the PRC as the buyers are now
provided with much more incentives. Accordingly, the Group
remains optimistic with the prospect of property industry and
will continue to enhance the quality of our properties and
associated services to increase our competitiveness in the
property market.

During the year under review, the Group started to
examine the connection among our properties, mobile
internet technologies and OTO business model. The Group
considered that such connection would have a significant
impact on our residential and commercial properties to be
developed in the future.

The Group will also continue to explore and seek new
business opportunities to broaden revenue and improve
profitability.

FREARRIT(ARRITDE-T—AFAAT+—BER
—FREENERFR0DBEMEDHES A% - WK —FHTF
PN EIZAER BN E2.25% G228 —_T—0F+—A
PABREE =R T3 © pEoh - RIBARIRTT - (EFE MR R
BEPBRRTEEEEEZBEN _T—AF=A=1H
BIEEE S B - BESLATA60% ML - —ERERAER
RIEEMKA0% - ASEREE SIEHE A - RIBRIEAS
KRBEZEBRGEREN —F—AF = A=+ ABEMCENMERT
BANEFEFEENBRNBA)  NEREAWERAE
BEFEIMF(RAIRIREF)  AIREFRHEZDE
R EEA R SO 3T ©

PEIBTI SN E RS ESFENFBEDTS - SEAN
BEXBRESEZHE - At - AEBEDAYEHETTE
MBI S ALBREE - YRSRERAYELBBREHNE
= MM MR EEN SN HES -

REBERER - AEERARRR MY LR LD TS
BT RAS R TR B 2 R - ARERA 4
WEREEHRMN AR RRNETRERYEBRER
HENTE -

AEBE T FEERRZNSIGNNEERS - ABEABRAMN

R A MBS ©
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

The board of directors of Sino Harbour Property Group
Limited (the “Company” and the “Directors”, respectively)
presents the annual report and the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 March 2015 (the “Year”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities and other particulars of
the subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND FINAL DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
44 of the annual report.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) does not recommend
the payment of a final dividend for the Year.

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The annual general meeting of the Company for the Year
(the “Annual General Meeting”) is scheduled to be held on
Thursday, 23 July 2015. A notice convening the Annual
General Meeting has been issued and disseminated to the
Shareholders on 23 June 2015.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Tuesday, 21 July 2015 to Thursday, 23 July 2015 (both days
inclusive), during which no transfer of shares of the Company
will be effected. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting, completed share
transfer forms must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Hong Kong, not later than 4: 30 p.m. on Monday, 20
July 2015.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page
123 of the annual report.
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Directors’ Report

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the Year and the state of the
Company’s and the Group’s affairs as at that date are set
out on pages 42 to 122 of the annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movement in the share capital of the Company
during the Year are set out in note 27 to the consolidated
financial statements.

TRANSFER TO RESERVES

Profits attributable to the Shareholders, before dividends,
of RMB92,926,000 (2014: RMB143,768,000) have been
transferred to reserves. Other movements in reserves are set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 48 and 49 of the annual report.

At 31 March 2015, the Company did not have reserves
available for distribution as calculated in accordance with the
provisions of the laws of Bermuda (31 March 2014 Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, the Company did not redeem any of the
shares listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) nor did the
Company or any of its subsidiaries purchase or sell any of
such shares.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) or the laws of
Bermuda in relation to the issue of new Shares.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
for its employees in Hong Kong and participates in a defined
contribution retirement scheme organized by the municipal
government of the People’s Republic of China for its
employees. Particulars of these retirement schemes are set
out in note 3.17 to the consolidated financial statements.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Company is not aware of any tax relief and exemption
available to its shareholders (the “Shareholders”) by reason
of their holding of the Company’s securities.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Details of bank and other loans of the Group are set out in
note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, sales to the Group’s largest customer and five
largest customers amounted to approximately 6.1% and
approximately 11.7% respectively of the Group’s revenue in
the Year.

In the Year, payment attributable to the Group’s largest
supplier and five largest suppliers amounted to approximately
10.3% and 43.3% of total payment under construction
contracts for the Year respectively.

None of the Directors or any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital)
had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers or customers.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Wong Lui

Ms. Gao Lan (appointed on 13 August 2014)
Non-executive Director:

Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady)

Independent Non-executive Directors (the “INEDs”):
Mr. Xie Gang

Mr. Lee Man To
Ms. Zhang Juan

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

In accordance with bye-law 83(2) of the Bye-laws, Ms. Gao
Lan will retire from office as an executive Director and being
eligible, offer herself for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

In accordance with bye-laws 84(1) and 84(2) of the Bye-
laws, Mr. Wong Lui and Mr. Xie Gang will retire from office as
an executive Director and an INED, respectively by rotation
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

The Company has received from each of the INEDs, namely
Mr. Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang Juan an
annual confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). As at the date
of this report, the Company considers that all of them are
independent.

The biographical information of the Directors and Senior
Management are set out on pages 37 to 41 of this annual
report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of Ms. Chan Heung Ling, Mr. Shi Feng, Mr. Wong Lui
and Ms. Gao Lan has a service contract with the Company
for a term of three years and each of these service contracts
is subject to termination by either party giving not less than
six months’ written notice.

Each of the INEDs has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for an initial term of one year and
thereafter shall continue year to year subject to termination
by either party giving not less than one month’s notice.

Apart from the foregoing, no Director proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting has a
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The Directors’ emoluments are subject to the
recommendations of the remuneration committee and the
Board’s approval. The emoluments are determined by the
Board by reference to the Directors’ duties, responsibilities
and performance and the results of the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five
individuals with the highest emoluments for the Year are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
respectively.
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Directors’ Report

ESERE

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

As at 31 March 2015, the interests or short positions of
the Directors and chief executives in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance, Chapter 571 of the
laws of Hong Kong (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register
maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) were as follows:

(i) Long position in the ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each in the Company (the “Shares”)

EERFETRABZ#H

RZZE—RF=A=+—H EFRFETBRAERER
Al B AR AR (E& RC(ES MBI ((EHEK
BRG] FEXVED) 2 Btn - AR S E S A AR
AR R BIRIBEEBEDIE 671 BB H NS 16H1)5 352 1%
FEZELMzBAaAR  HERBLEMETAESE
TRHFRF 2 IRETR ([BRESFR ) BTSN R K8
R REmBORBINT ¢

() RELFISREEIOIBIZEBER(KRGNZHFR

Approximate percentage

Name of Directors/ Number of Capacity/ of Shareholding

chief executive Shares held Nature of Interest in the Company

B TETBAEHSE RO EE VA AARERZBNBE D

Ms. Chan Heung Ling 900,000,000 Interest of a controlled 75%
(“Ms. Chan”) (Note) corporation

PRI+ ([ E]) (F%E) —ER ) EEE S

Note: These Shares are held by Pan Hong Property Group
Limited (“Pan Hong Property”) as beneficial owner. Pan
Hong Property is owned as to 56.22% by Extra Good
Enterprises Ltd. (“Extra Good”), which is in turn owned as
to 52% by Mr. Wong Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong’), the spouse
of Ms. Chan, a non-executive director and the chairlady of
the Company and 48% by Ms. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the Directors or chief executives had any interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015
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Directors’ Report

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES
(CONTINUED)

(i) Long positions in the shares of associated
corporations

Name of Directors/ Name of

ESERE

EERFETHRAE 2 (H)
(i) RAEEZERG 2T

Number, class and

chief executive associated Capacity/ percentage of shares in

BE corporations nature of interest associated corporations

FEITHRAEHE B EE AR 55, REmEtE HAEBEENROEE - BARBESE

Mr. Shi Feng Pan Hong Property Beneficial owner 473,900 ordinary shares (0.09%) of
Pan Hong Property

AL NFEHEE BB A 473,900 BON 7 3 2 3 3R AR (0.09%)

Ms. Chan Pan Hong Property Beneficial owner 323,395,494 ordinary shares (63.12%)
of Pan Hong Property (Note)

PR+ N HE EREAA 323,395,494 BON B i B E AR

Note: Ms. Chan is interested in 323,395,494 ordinary shares
(approximately 63.12% of the entire issued share capital)
of Pan Hong Property, which comprises: (1) 14,443,300
ordinary shares of Pan Hong Property held by her; (2)
20,952,194 ordinary shares of Pan Hong Property, held
by her spouse, Mr. Wong, in which she is deemed to
be interested; and (3) 288,000,000 ordinary shares of
Pan Hong Property held by Extra Good, in which she is
deemed to be interested.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2015, none of
the Directors or the chief executive of the Company had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which were required (i) to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short
positions which they were taken or deemed to have under
such provisions of the SFO); or (i) pursuant to section 352 of
the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein; or
(iii) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules.

ARRANGEMENTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

At no time during the Year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable a Director
to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of the Shares
or any shares in other body corporate.

(63.12%) (Fi15E)

Hiat - BRZ A+ 328,395,494 - B 1t EE B 2 1 s (152
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ESERE

INTERESTS OF SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 March 2015, insofar as is known to the Directors
or chief executive of our Company, the following persons
or organisations (not being a Director or chief executive of
our Company), had or were deemed or taken to have an
interest and/or short position in the Shares or underlying
Shares, which fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO were as
follows:

TERRZER

RZE—RF=A=+—H BEFIARFAFETHEA
BRA - THOIALTeAR (LIFEFHARFETETHA
8) B0 SRR D P R A SRR SRR E R B AR
ECGRES M EE R DI)SEXVERSE 2 K 35 5F 2 (& M AN 22 B3
BoERRk/HARIT

Long position in the Shares BB zEE
Approximate percentage
Number of Capacity/ of shareholding
Name of Shareholders Shares held Nature of Interest in the Company
REEH iR BB B RERtE AARERZBOB DL
Pan Hong Property 900,000,000 Beneficial owner 75%
NS EE EmAEAA
Extra Good 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) B corporation
(F%E) R EEE S
Mr. Wong 900,000,000 Interest of controlled 75%
(Note) corporation
A (BH3E) REHEE RS

Note: Pan Hong Property is owned as to 56.22% by Extra Good, which
is in turn owned as to 52% by Mr. Wong, the spouse of Ms. Chan,
and 48% by Ms. Chan.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any
other person or organisations (other than a Director or chief
executive of the Company) who/which had, or were deemed
or taken to have an interest or short position in the Shares
or underlying Shares as at 31 March 2015, which would fall
to be disclosed under Division 2 and 3 of part XV of the SFO
and were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions as disclosed in note 32(a)
to the consolidated financial statements also fell under the
definition of “continuing connected transaction” in Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules. As the annual amount involved
in this continuing connected transaction is less than
HK$3,000,000, such continuing connected transaction will
qualify as a de minimis transaction under Rule 14A.33(3) of
the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the reporting, annual
review, announcement and independent Shareholders’
approval requirements.
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Directors’ Report

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACT OF
SIGNIFICANCE

No contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s
business, to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director has a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Year or at
any time during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contacts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Company were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Year and up to the date of this report, none of
the Directors are considered to have interests in a business
which competes or is likely to compete, either directly or
indirectly, with the business of the Group, as defined by the
Listing Rules.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING

On 30 June 2011, the Company and Pan Hong Property
entered into a non-compete undertaking (the “Non-compete
Undertaking”) to avoid any potential competitions between
the business of the Company and Pan Hong Property after
the spin-off and separate listing of the Company. Information
about the relevant undertakings between the Company
and Pan Hong Property was disclosed in the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” of the
Company’s prospectus dated 12 July 2011.

The Company has received a confirmation from Pan Hong
Property that it has complied with the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking for the Year. The INEDs have also
reviewed the said confirmation and are of the view that Pan
Hong Property has complied with the terms of the Non-
compete Undertaking.

SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed above, no Shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of
significance to the business of the Group to which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party during the
Year.
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ESERE

UPDATE ON DIRECTORS’ INFORMATION UNDER
RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

On 13 August 2014, Ms. GAO Lan was appointed as
an executive Director of the Company and a member of
Nomination Committee.

Apart from the above, there has been no change to the
information of the Directors since the date of the issuance
of the annual report of the Company for the year ended 31
March 2014, which is required to be disclosed in this annual
report pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance
Report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors,
the Board confirms that the Company has maintained a
sufficient public float as required by the Listing Rules (i.e. at
least 25% of the issued Shares in public hands) during the
Year and as at the date of this annual report.

DONATION

During the Year, the Group made charitable donations
amounting to approximately RMBO.2 million (2014: RMBO0.8
million).

REVIEW BY AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has discussed and
reviewed with the management of the annual results, the
consolidated financial statements and the annual report of
the Company for the Year.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

BDO Limited retire and a resolution for the re-appointment
as independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the forthcoming Annual General Meeting. There has been no
change in the auditors of the Company since the listing of the
Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

By order of the Board

Shi Feng
Deputy Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE ON CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (the “Company”)
and together with its subsidiaries (the “Group”) recognises
that good corporate governance establishes and maintains
a legal and ethical environment, which is essential for
preserving and enhancing the interests of all stakeholders.
The Company has complied with all of the code provisions
in the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code Provision”)
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange” and the “Listing Rules”,
respectively) during the year ended 31 March 2015 (the
“Year”).

(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”)
is primarily responsible for overseeing and supervising
the management of the business affairs and the
overall performance of the Group. The Board sets
the Group’s values and standards and ensures that
the requisite financial and human resources support
are in place for the Group to achieve its objectives.
Currently, the Board comprises six Directors, including
three executive Directors, Mr. Shi Feng, Mr. Wong Lui
and Ms. Gao Lan, a non-executive Director Ms. Chan
Heung Ling and three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Xie Gang, Mr. Lee Man To and Ms.
Zhang Juan. Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan
Heung Ling. Save as disclosed above, there is no
family or other material relationship among members
of the Board. The biographical details of the Directors
are out on pages 37 to 40 of the annual report.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy
which sets out the approach to accomplish diversity
on the Board. The Company recognises that
increasing diversity at the Board level will support the
achievement of the Company’s business objectives
and sustainable development.

Corporate Governance Report
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company seeks to accomplish Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors, such
as gender, age, cultural and educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length
of service. All Board appointments will be based on
merit while taking into account diversity including
gender diversity.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, such as gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates will bring to the Board.

All executive Directors and non-executive Director
entered into service contracts with the Company for
a specific term of three years. Under the Bye-Laws
of the Company (the “Bye-Laws”), the Board is
empowered to appoint any person as a Director to fill
a causal vacancy or as an additional Director. Where
vacancies exist, the Board shall carry out selection
process by making reference to the skills, experience,
qualification, integrity and time commitments of the
proposed candidates.

In compliance with Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules,
the Company has appointed three independent non-
executive Directors, one of whom has appropriate
professional qualifications in accounting and financial
management. All independent non-executive Directors
have confirmed their independence of the Company
and the Company considers them to be independent
in accordance with the guidelines for assessing
independence set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
All independent non-executive Directors have entered
into letters of appointment with the Company for a
specific term of one year. One-third of the Directors
are subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-
election at each annual general meeting provided that
every Director shall be subject to rotation at least once
every three years in accordance with the Bye-Laws.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

All Directors, including independent non-executive
Directors, have given sufficient time and effort to
the affairs of the Group. Independent non-executive
Directors have provided the Board with their diversified
expertise, experience and professional advice. The
Board believes that the ratio between executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors
is reasonable and adequate to provide sufficient
checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
the Company’s shareholders (the “Shareholders”)
and the Group. The Board also believes that the views
and participation of the independent non-executive
Directors in the Board and committee meetings
provide independent judgment on the issues relating
to strategy, performance, conflict of interest and
management process to ensure that the interests of all
Shareholders are considered and safeguarded.

All Directors have full and timely access to all relevant
information in relation to the Group’s businesses and
affairs as well as unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”), who is responsible for
providing Directors with Board papers, and related
materials. The Directors may seek independent
professional advice at the Company’s expenses in
carrying out their duties and responsibilities.

The Company has subscribed appropriate and
sufficient insurance coverage on Directors’ liabilities in
respect of legal actions taken against Directors arising
out of corporate activities.

The Directors are committed to complying with the
code provision A.6.5 of the Code Provisions. All
Directors have participated in continuous professional
development and provided a record of training they
received for the Year to the Company.
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(A) THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The individual training record of each Director received
for the Year is set out below:

Exe(®)

RBERFE  SEFEZEIZEALEHT
T

Briefings and updates

on the business,
operations and corporate
governance matters

BREK  2ER
Name of Director EEMSE CEEAREEZERREN
Executive Directors BiTES
Mr. Shi Feng (Deputy Chairman AEEE (BIEFHk v
and Chief Executive Officer) BEHNITE)

Mr. Wong Lui A@EAE v
Ms. Gao Lan (appointed on 13 August 2014) ®mEZET(R-_Z—HWNFNA+=H

") v
Non-executive Director EMITES
Ms. Chan Heung Ling (Chairlady) FRIMIS 2+ (£/%) v
Independent Non-executive Directors BNIEMITES
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 4
Mr. Lee Man To FHUESE v
Ms. Zhang Juan SRIBE T+ v

During the Year, the Board held seven meetings.
At these Board meetings, Directors discussed
and exchanged their views on significant issues
and general operations of the Group, reviewed the
financial performance and reviewed and approved the
quarterly, interim and final results.

At least 14 days’ notice prior to the date of meeting
is given to all Directors and an agenda together with
the Board papers are sent to all Directors no less than
three days before the date of meeting. All Directors are
given opportunity to include in the agenda any other
matter that they would like to discuss in the meeting.
Regarding the Board committee meeting, reasonable
prior notice is given to all committee members.
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(A)

(B)

€

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman of the
Board in preparation of the agenda for the Board
meetings and Board committee meetings. He also
prepares and keeps detailed minutes of each Board
meeting and Board committee meeting. Within a
reasonable time after each meeting, the draft minutes
are circulated to all Directors or committee members
for comment and the final and approved version
of minutes is sent to all Directors and committee
members for their record. The Company Secretary has
duly complied with the relevant professional training
requirement under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

CHAIRLADY AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Ms. Chan Heung Ling is the Chairlady of the Board
and Mr. Shi Feng is the Chief Executive Officer of the
Company. The division of responsibilities between the
Chairlady and the Chief Executive Officer are clearly
divided to ensure a balance of power and authority.

Ms. Chan Heung Ling, being the Chairlady, is
responsible for formulating the Company’s overall
strategies and policies, providing leadership to the
Board and ensuring the Board functions effectively.
She would ensure complete, reliable and timely
information being provided to the Directors and
encourage Directors to actively participate in the
Board to act in the best interest of the Company.

Mr. Shi Feng, being the Chief Executive Officer, is
responsible for the daily operations of the Company,
execution of business policies, strategies, objectives
and plans as formulated and adopted by the Board
and leading the management of the Company.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of the Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10 to
the Listing Rules as its code of conduct for securities
transactions by the Directors. After having made
specific enquiries by the Company with all Directors,
all of them confirmed that they had complied with
the required standards set out in the Model Code
throughout the Year.
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(D) DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE

(E)

(F)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
for the financial Year, which give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and the Group
at 31 March 2015 and of the Group’s results and
cash flows for the Year then ended and are properly
prepared on a going concern basis in accordance with
the applicable statutory requirements and accounting
standards.

The external auditors of the Group have also stated
their reporting responsibility in the independent
auditor’s report of the consolidated financial
statements.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board committees,
namely audit committee, remuneration committee and
nomination committee, to oversee particular aspects
of the Company’s affairs. The Board committees are
provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties.

The written terms of reference for each committee
were adopted by the Board. The terms of reference
are in line with the Listing Rules and they are posted
on the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

In compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules,
an audit committee was established on 4 July
2011 with written terms of reference in accordance
with the Corporate Governance Code as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The audit committee
comprises three independent non-executive Directors,
namely Mr. Lee Man To (the chairman), Mr. Xie Gang
and Ms. Zhang Juan. The audit committee reports to
the Board and is delegated by the Board to assess
matters related to the financial statements. Under its
terms of reference, the audit committee is required to
perform, amongst others, the following duties:

° monitoring whether the Group’s management
has, in the performance of its duties, infringed
any policies set by the Board or any applicable
laws, regulation and code and reporting to the
Board;
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(F) AUDIT COMMITTEE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

(CONTINUED)

° reviewing the Group’s internal control
procedures and system;

° making recommendations to the Board for the
improvement of the Group’s internal control
procedures and system;

° making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the
external auditor, and approving and reviewing
the remuneration and terms of engagement of
the external auditor and any questions of its
resignation or dismissal; and

o monitoring the integrity of accounts, financial
statements, interim reports and annual reports.

The audit committee held four meetings during the
Year and all minutes were kept by the Company
Secretary. The committee has reviewed the
accounting policies and practices adopted by the
Group and the quarterly and interim results of the
Group. The committee reported that there was no
material uncertainty that cast doubt on the Company’s
going concern ability.

Auditors’ remuneration

The total fees paid/payable in relation to the audit
service provided by BDO Limited, Certified Public
Accountants, Hong Kong, the external auditors of the
Company, for the Year amounted to HK$850,000.
No non-audit service was provided by the external
auditors for the Year.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee was established with
written terms of reference in accordance with the
Code Provision as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules. The main responsibilities of the remuneration
committee include but are not limited to formulating
a remuneration policy for the approval of the Board,
and making recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for the remuneration
of all Directors and senior management and on
the remuneration package of individual executive
Directors and senior management. The remuneration
committee comprises three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie Gang (the
chairman), Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang Juan, one
non-executive Director Ms. Chan Heung Ling and one
executive Director Mr. Shi Feng. The remuneration of
senior management by band for the Year are set out in
note 13 to the consolidated financial statements.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held
during the Year to review the remuneration policies
and consider and recommmend to the Board the annual
bonus of the Directors and senior executives.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The major duties of the nomination committee are
to give advice to the Board on the appointment/re-
appointment of Directors, to review the structure,
number of members and composition of the Board,
and to assess the independence of independent non-
executive Directors.

The nomination committee comprises three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Xie
Gang (the chairman), Mr. Lee Man To and Ms. Zhang
Juan, and two executive Directors Mr. Wong Lui and
Ms. Gao Lan.

Two meetings were held during the Year to review and
assess the overall diversity of the composition of the
Board with reference to the various aspects as set out
in the Board Diversity Policy.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the corporate
governance functions of the Company pursuant to the
Code Provisions stated in the Corporate Governance
Code as set forth in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules and, has, amongst other matters, reviewed
this corporate governance report in discharge of its
corporate governance functions, ensuring compliance
with the Listing Rules.
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Corporate Governance Report

AN S
TEERMRE
ATTENDANCE RECORD OF DIRECTORS AND J) EERZEERENSEHERHE
COMMITTEE MEMBERS
The attendance record of each Director at the Board T % HINREEHFHEAFERITZEEES
meetings, Board committee meetings and the general CEBEELZEEERNLAR 792%7(%5’35 0%
meeting of the Company held during the Year is set
out in the table below:
Attendance/Number of Meetings held
HESRRE SRBTRY
Annual

Audit Remuneration = Nomination General
Name of Directors Board Committee Committee Committee Meeting
BEEME EEg ERZEE® FMEEEe REZEE REBFEAS
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Shi Feng RS- /7 2/2 11
Mr. Wong Lui P pivta 7/7 2/2 0/1
Ms. Gao Lan * mEZL 2/7 0/2 0
Non-executive Director FHTES
Ms. Chan Heung Ling R L+ 7/7 2/2 1/1
Independent UFHTES

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Xie Gang FRRI S /7 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
Mr. Lee Man To &g 7/7 4/4 2/2 2/2 1/1
Ms. Zhang Juan wigLt 7/7 4/4 2/2 2/2 0
* Appointed on 13 August 2014 - RZFE—PFNA+=HEZT
INTERNAL CONTROL (K) REpEsE

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for
maintaining a sound system of internal control
framework. The controls are to provide reasonable
assurance to safeguard Shareholders’ investments
and the Group’s assets. The system of internal
controls is designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives. It can
only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material misstatement or loss and the review
of the Group’s internal control systems should be a
concerted and continuing process.

The Group’s control environment provides the
foundation upon which all other components of
internal controls are built. It provides discipline and
structure, setting the tone of the organisation and
influencing the control consciousness of its staff.
A weak control environment foundation hampers
the effectiveness of even the best designed internal
control procedure.
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INTERNAL CONTROL (CONTINUED)

The external auditors have, during the course of audit,
considered the internal control relevant to the Group’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
within the scope of their audit. The Board, through
the audit committee, had reviewed the effectiveness
of the internal control system of the Group, and also
reviewed the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff of the Company’s accounting
and financial reporting function, and their training
programmes and budget. The Board believes that
the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective.

SHAREHOLDER RELATIONS

The Group is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its Shareholders. The Company
has adopted a policy of disclosing clear, adequate
and relevant information to Shareholders in a timely
manner through various channels. Annual and interim
reports are printed and sent to all Shareholders by
post as requested. The Company has complied
with provisions of the Listing Rules by posting
announcements, notices, quarterly reports, interim
reports, annual reports and Shareholders’ circulars on
the respective websites of the Stock Exchange and
the Company (http://www.sinoharbour.com.hk).

Shareholders are encouraged to attend the annual
general meetings and special general meetings. In the
general meeting, there is a briefing on the business
of the Company by the Chairman of the Board and a
question and answer session as well as a discussion
with Shareholders on the long-term development
strategy of the Company.

Notice of annual general meeting is delivered to all
Shareholders at least 20 clear business days prior to
the date of the meeting, setting out details of each
proposed resolution, voting procedures (including
procedures for demanding and conducting a poll)
and other relevant information. As at the beginning
of the meeting, the procedures for demanding and
conducting a poll will be explained by the chairman
of the meeting. Vote results are released by way of
publication of an announcement.
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(M) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

How Shareholders can convene a Special
General Meeting

According to Bye-law 58 of the Bye-laws,
Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up
capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company shall have the right
to require a special general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition.

The requisition shall be in writing addressed to the
Board or the Company Secretary and deposited at
the Company’s principal place of business in Hong
Kong at Room 1215, Tower B, Hunghom Commercial
Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road, Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong.

If within twenty-one (21) days of such deposit the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionists themselves may do so in accordance
with section 74(3) of the Companies Act of Bermuda.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings to the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong, the contact details of which are set out as
follows:

Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East,
Hong Kong
Telephone (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile (852) 2810 8185
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(M) SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS (CONTINUED)

(N)

Shareholders, potential investors and the media
may at any time make a request for the Company’s
information to the extent that such information is
publicly available and make enquiries to the Company
through the following means:

By telephone (852) 2363 1300

Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial
Centre,

37-39 Ma Tau Wai Road,
Hunghom, Kowloon,
Hong Kong

By post

By email ir@sinoharbour.com.hk
The procedures for making proposals at general
meetings

To put forward proposals at a general meeting,
Shareholders should submit a written notice of those
proposals with detailed contact information to the
Company Secretary at the Company’s principal place
of business in Hong Kong at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The request
will be verified by the Company’s share registrar in
Hong Kong and upon their confirmation that the
request is proper and in order, the Company Secretary
will ask the Board to include the resolution in the
agenda for the general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There were no significant changes in the Company’s
constitutional documents during the Year.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

CHAIRLADY AND NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Chan Heung Ling (FRI8¥%), aged 56, is one of the
founders of the Group and became the Chairlady of the
Company and non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. She
is also a member of the remuneration committee of the
Company (the “Remuneration Committee”). Ms. Chan
is mainly responsible for the formulation of the overall
strategy of the Group. Ms. Chan has engaged in property
development since 1990s and has experience in this area for
over 19 years. She participated in the property business of
Pan Hong Property Group Limited (“Pan Hong Property”),
the controlling shareholder of the Company, and was the
deputy chairlady and an executive director of Pan Hong
Property from January 2006 to June 2011. Ms. Chan is the
spouse of Mr. Wong Lam Ping (“Mr. Wong”), and is the
mother of Mr. Wong Lui, one of the executive Directors. Ms.
Chan and Mr. Wong indirectly control Pan Hong Property.

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Shi Feng (Fl#), aged 57, became the deputy chairman,
the chief executive officer of the Company and an executive
Director on 4 July 2011. He is also a member of the
Remuneration Committee. Mr. Shi is responsible for the
management of project plans, quality control, contractors,
and the management of the Company’s subsidiaries. He
joined Pan Hong Property in September 2002 and was an
executive director of Pan Hong Property from January 2006
to June 2011.

He was certified as an engineer by the Ministry of Light
Industry of the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) (#
= ARLMEE TEE) in 1087.

Mr. Shi graduated with a bachelor’s degree in civil and
industrial construction from the Hunan University in the PRC
in December 1981.

Prior to joining Pan Hong Property, Mr. Shi was an assistant
civil engineer at the construction technology department
of Twenty Third Metallurgy Construction Company under
the Ministry of Metallurgy O & TEHLE-_+=A0ER
AR (M ITHEAMER)) from 1982 to 1983. He served as an
engineer at the Changsha Design Institute of the Ministry of
Light Industry (8 T 2 &K E&5F) from 1983 to 1992,
where he specialised in the structural design of buildings.
Mr. Shi subsequently joined Huilong (Group) Ltd. of Huizhou
City, Guangdong Province (ER&ABMMEEEEFR A
A]) in the PRC from 1992 to 1999 as the deputy general
manager, responsible for real estate development and
technical construction management. Between 1999 and
2002, he was the general manager of 3A Electronics Co.,
Ltd. in Huzhou City, Zhejiang Province GIT T & MM =%
THRAR), the PRC.

Mr. Shi is now a member of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference of Donghu District of Nanchang
City, Jiangxi Province, the PRC. He is also the standing
director of the Second Nanchang Overseas Chinese
Entrepreneurs Association.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EENEREEE CBEFS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Wong Lui (J£%), aged 32, became an executive Director
on 4 July 2011 and is a member of the nomination committee
of the Company (the “Nomination Committee”). Mr. Wong
Lui is mainly responsible for the operational management
and development of the projects of Nanchang Honggu
Kaixuan (@ S4IA8L5E) and Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan
(¥ ZEXEFZRT ) . He joined Pan Hong Property in October
2007 as the assistant to the chairman of Pan Hong Property
in the formulation of business strategy and management
of Pan Hong Property. He was appointed as the deputy
project manager and the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Asia City Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Jiangxi
Asia City”, /TN EHEREAR2AR]), one of the
Group’s subsidiaries, in 2008 and was mainly responsible for
management of construction works. He was also appointed
as the general manager of Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan
Property Development Co., Ltd. (‘Fuzhou Pan Hong”, &
NINBEHEREAMR A F) and Hangzhou Ganglian Real
Estate Co., Ltd. (‘Hangzhou Ganglian”, T/l 7EB: & %
BBRAT]) in 2009 and 2014 respectively and was mainly
responsible for the formulation of business strategy and
the daily management of Fuzhou Pan Hong and Hangzhou
Ganglian.

Mr. Wong Lui is now a standing committee member of
Jiangxi Federation of Industry and Commerce in the PRC.

Mr. Wong Lui is the son of Ms. Chan Heung Ling (“Ms.
Chan”), the chairlady and a non-executive Director, and Mr.
Wong. Ms. Chan and Mr. Wong indirectly control Pan Hong
Property.

Gao Lan (S&), aged 49, joined the Group in June 2010 as
the director of marketing and administration. She has been
re-designated as the Group’s director of marketing since
November 2013 in order to concentrate on the Group’s
marketing affairs. Ms. Gao was appointed as an executive
Director on 13 August 2014 and is also a member of the
Nomination Committee.

Ms. Gao graduated from the Jiangxi Industrial University
(IPET %K) in the PRC, the predecessor of Nanchang
University (FJ&KE2), in 1987, with a bachelor’s degree
majoring in industrial and civil construction. She was certified
as an engineer in 1994 and qualified as class 2 constructor
in 20083.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Ms. Gao has extensive experience in construction and real
estate development industry. She worked at the technology
division of the real estate department of Nanchang City
Municipal Engineering Development Co., Ltd. (&M MK
TREFEARAF]) from 1987 to 1993. She joined Hainan
Huan Li (Real Estate) Group (8 3=/ (H2E ) &) in 1993,
acting as the director of the chief executive officer’s office,
and as the deputy general manager of Hainan Huan Li Real
Estate Development Co. Ltd. (8RR FEHEMRZEGRE A
A]). Ms. Gao was the deputy general manager of Shanghai
Jing Ja Immovable Investment Consultant Co., Ltd. (/4%
ETBERE K AAR A ) from 2001 to 2006. From 2006
10 2009, she was the deputy general manager of Nanchang
Lan Di Consultant Co., Ltd. (F BB AR A A]). After
that, she joined Jiangxi Jinhai Property Co., Ltd. (T 7355
EEBREMLAT]) as the general manager from 2009 to
2010 before joining the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Xie Gang (M), aged 50,became an independent non-
executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also the chairman
of each of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee and a member of the audit committee of the
Company (the “Audit Committee”). Mr. Xie was the head
representative of AXA Guangzhou representative office from
1995 to 2002, during which he was responsible for the
operation of the representative office and matters relating
to establishing branch companies for AXA group. From
20083 to 2008, he was the manager of AXA-Minmetals
Assurance Co., Ltd., Guangdong Branch in the PRC and
was responsible for government relations, establishing
new companies, recruitment, franchise development, risk
management, marketing and sales etc. Mr. Xie graduated
from the Xiamen University in the PRC with a bachelor’s
degree in computer science in July 1988.

Lee Man To (ZHUH), aged 42, became an independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. He is also the
chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of each
of the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Lee is an executive director, the financial
controller, qualified accountant and company secretary of
Combest Holdings Limited (formerly known as Goldmond
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Growth
Enterprise Market of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 8190). Mr.
Lee has over 17 years of experience in auditing, accounting
and finance including acting as accountant, compliance
officer and financial manager for various private companies.
He served in the group finance department of Rosedale
Hotel Holdings Limited (formerly known as Wing On Travel
(Holdings) Limited), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 1189), from 2007 to
2008. Mr. Lee graduated in the Hong Kong Polytechnic
University with a bachelor’s degree in accountancy in 1995.
Mr. Lee is an associate member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow member of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
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EENEREEE CBEFS

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
(CONTINUED)

Zhang Juan (3R%8), aged 31, became an independent
non-executive Director on 4 July 2011. She is also a
member of each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. She has been the
legal representative of Shanghai Jinfu Trading Company
Limited ( E/&88EEREBRAF]) since 2009, which is
principally engaged in the business of retail of jewellery and
artworks and accessories trading. Ms. Zhang is responsible
for product design and product manufacturing and sales
process. She has also been the legal representative and
a director of Shanghai Yunteng Investment Management
Limited ( L/BEEKREEELEFIRAT]) since 2010, which is
principally engaged in the business of financial investment
management and consultation. In her position as legal
representative, Ms. Zhang is in charge of the said company’s
financial regulatory matters, budget analysis, as well as
overseeing the said company'’s internal controls. Ms. Zhang
graduated from the Shanghai Ocean University ( /&8 ¥
AKE) in the PRC, formerly known as Shanghai Fisheries
University (_E/87KEKE), with a bachelor’s degree in
finance in 2005.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Li Ming Yuan (ZBA7T), aged 52, is the Group’s director
of property management. He joined Pan Hong Property in
2004 as deputy general manager of Jiangxi Asia City. He
remained in this position until 2007 and was afterwards
appointed as the deputy general manager of Jiangxi
Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. CTFEERXEEFRAA]D) in
the same year.

Mr. Li was educated at the Jiangxi Broadcasting and
Television University CIFAEEERAZ) in the PRC,
where he graduated in 1989 majoring in Industrial and
Civil Construction. From 1989 to 1996, he served as a
construction worker, the deputy head of the production
department and the director of production technology
department at Nanchang City Municipal Engineering
Development Co., Ltd. (FAEm M LiEFERRAR]).
Mr. Li was certified as an engineer in 1997.

Qiu Si Yuan (EBBEJR), aged 55, is the Group’s director of
planning and design. Mr. Qiu joined Pan Hong Property as
the director of planning and design in 2008.

Mr. Qiu has worked in construction industry for over 25
years, including China CEC Engineering Corporation (/1
WIERDIRAERANT), formerly known as Changsha
Design Institute of the Ministry of Light Industry (88 T %
ERDEETFT), from 1982 to 1995. In 1995, Mr. Qiu was
assigned to work in Hunan Dacheng Design Co., Ltd. (G#F
KEEEREHEBRAT]) as the deputy head of the institute
and chief architect until 2008. He joined Pan Hong Property
thereafter. Mr. Qiu was registered as a certified class 2
architect in 1997.
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Biographical Information of Directors and Senior Management

SENIOR MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liu Lin Yu (2|8 E), aged 63, is the Group’s director
of project expenditure. He joined Pan Hong Property in
2000, and had been responsible for costs management at
Pan Hong Property’s development projects. Since joining
Pan Hong Property, he has served as the deputy general
manager of Jieyang Hong Jun Real Estate Co. Ltd. (8F5
ZRiEFEHENT]) and on-site engineer of Huzhou Liyang
Housing and Landing Development Co., Ltd. CG#INEEES
B ERZEFRRAF]). He had also served as the budget
forecast manager and the deputy general manager of
Jiangxi Asia City.

Mr. Liu was certified as an assistant engineer by Chaozhou
City Science and Technology Committee (BN HHEIES
HilfZ E2) in the PRC in 1989. He graduated from
an intermediate level professional civil engineering
correspondence learning course (A& +RZBETRH
¥ KIRIL) from the Sichuan International Technical and
Economic Management Training Centre (P9)I|EFE 1T
BB E IR FIF0) in the PRC in 1990. In 1991,
he was qualified as a budget forecaster and worked for
Chaozhou City Qiao Dong Construction Company (#/H
TERIEENT]) . The said qualification was granted by
Guangdong Province Construction Standard Authority (E
REERSETHLAL) in the PRC.

Siu Ho Fai (F%&) , aged 34, is the financial controller of
the Group. He is also the company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives of the Company under the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Siu has over ten years of experience in finance, auditing
and accounting. Mr. Siu joined the Group in March 2011.
Prior to joining the Group, he worked for international
certified public accountants firms for over seven years. Mr.
Siu obtained a bachelor’s degree of business administration
in accountancy and law from the City University of Hong
Kong in 2002. He is also a member of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B AR S

Fax: +852 2818 2239
www.bdo.com.hk

I BDO Tel : +852 2218 8288
e——

25t™ Floor Wing On Centre
111 Connaught Road Central

Hong Kong
TEEE ¢ +852 2218 8288 FEETHEERI15E
{8H : +852 2818 2239 k&H2548

www.bdo.com.hk

To the shareholders of
Sino Harbour Property Group Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) set out on pages 44
to 122, which comprise the consolidated and company
statements of financial position as at 31 March 2015, and
the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies
and other explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY (CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’'s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
the directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation
of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company and of the Group as at 31 March 2015 and
of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Cheung Or Ping
Practising Certificate Number P05412

Hong Kong, 23 June 2015
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

AN =%
,%/T = %Eq&ﬁﬁ%‘%
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—-ALEFE

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AREFIT
Revenue WA 6 500,874 476,339
Cost of sales SHE R (365,360) (324,157)
Gross profit ER 135,514 152,182
Other income HUg A 6 62,675 107,873
Selling and distribution expenses SHE R DIHE R (18,639) (14,557)
Administrative expenses ERER (33,884) (30,655)
Operating profit BeERR 145,666 214,843
Finance costs BB 7 - -
Share of results of joint ventures JEIEE B FEFEA 17 (1,219) (480)
Profit before income tax MR8 5 AE R 8 144,447 214,363
Income tax expense FriSfiF 9 (54,574) (73,400)
Profit for the year FREF 89,873 140,963
Other comprehensive income (net of tax) HfttZ MUz (FERFIIE)
Item that may be reclassified HEQUEEHFIEE
subsequently to profit or loss BR2EB
Exchange differences on translation of BREBINEBMBIRE 2
financial statements of foreign operations PE 5 =%8 1,534 (1,655)
Other comprehensive income for the year FRE 2 HUE 1,534 (1,655)
Total comprehensive income for the year FRZHE AT 91,407 139,308
Profit/(loss) for the year attributable to: AT A TG ERER(BE) :
Owners of the Company RATHBA 10 92,926 143,768
Non-controlling interests i e (3,053) (2,805)
89,873 140,963
Total comprehensive income DTRATEEEZmKEELE !
attributable to:
Owners of the Company KATREBA 94,460 142,113
Non-controlling interests IR (3,053) (2,805)
91,407 139,308
Earnings per share for profit attributable &£ RZA 2R F#EA AEGER
to the owners of the Company during ZEBREFN(ARESD)
the year (in RMB cents)
- Basic and diluted —EXREE 12 7.74 11.98
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

e MEIR AR

As at 31 March 2015

R-E-RF=A=t—-H

2015 2014
—E-EHF —Z—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B aE ARET T ARBTIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y% - BREMERE 14 10,770 11,674
Investment properties HEME 15 385,233 331,348
Interests in joint ventures REEhE 17 184,654 182,437
Pledged deposits BHEIFFR 22 100,000 330,000
Deferred tax assets EETH IR E 26 15,012 15,012
695,669 870,471
Current assets REEE
Properties held under development EEAGEEIES 18 1,567,208 1,154,456
Properties held for sale FEYE 19 695,291 414,172
Accounts receivable JEYBR TN 20 1,543 669
Prepayments and other receivables TR ROIB K E A R Y SR IE 21 155,027 517,234
Structured bank deposits EREIERITIFK 22 154,000 -
Pledged deposits BRI ER 22 319,403 233,772
Cash and bank balances Be MIRTTHES 22 183,660 67,768
3,076,132 2,388,071
Current liabilities RBAE
Accounts and bill payables ERBEFEEE 23 65,294 23,995
Accruals, receipts in advance and JEETEUE - FEWRIE N
other payables E M 3kIE 23 954,874 653,219
Provision for tax THIER 121,441 106,047
Bank and other loans IRITRHEAMER 25 697,832 375,173
1,839,441 1,158,434
Net current assets REEEFE 1,236,691 1,229,637
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBERS 1,932,360 2,100,108
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Bank and other loans RITREMER 25 480,000 748,500
Deferred tax liabilities FEFHTEEE 26 54,411 45,066
534,411 793,566
Net assets FEE 1,397,949 1,306,542
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

REMBIR R
As at 31 March 2015
R-Z-AF=A=+—H

2015 2014
—E-hfF —E-F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5T AR¥T T AREFIT
EQUTIY =
Equity attributable to the BATEEAEGER
Company’s owners
Share capital &N 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves it 28 1,180,407 1,085,947
1,190,338 1,095,878
Non-controlling interests FEIERRER 207,611 210,664
Total equity EREE 1,397,949 1,306,542
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
FRIME Alg
Director Director
EFE EE
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Statement of Financial Position

BRI AR

As at 31 March 2015
R-Z-—HF=ZA=+—H

2015 2014
—E-EHF —Z—
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B AR®T T AREFIT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NN 55 16 285,452 285,452
Current assets REEE
Prepayments and other receivables TET R0 R E A R U GRIE 21 191 292
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUHI BB A B 5RIE 24 267,965 269,219
Cash and bank balances & MIRTT4ER 22 91 92
268,247 269,603
Current liabilities REBEE
Accruals and other payables FERTRIR K B e FRIE 23 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries JERIHI B A R 5E 24 8,083 8,083
8,147 8,147
Net current assets REBEEZE 260,100 261,456
Total assets less current liabilities/ BEERRBER
net assets EEFE 545,552 546,908
EQUTIY s
Equity attributable to the Company’s EAREEAELER
owners
Share capital N 27 9,931 9,931
Reserves s 28 535,621 536,977
Total equity e AARR 545,552 546,908
Chan Heung Ling Shi Feng
BRI B Alg
Director Director
EFE EE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GRaEREHER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—-ALEFE

48

Equity attrioutable to the owners of the Company
NG
Proposed Non-
Share Share  Statutory  Exchange  Retained final controling Totdl
capitl  premium®  reserve”  reserve®  profits’  dividend Total  interests equity
RIRE FEER
BE RAEE EEdE EXRE 2R ) Gk B EafE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB000
ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETL
(Note 28(j) * (Note 28(i)
(Bizros) (HizE2si)
At 1 Apri 2013 RZE-=FEmA-A 9931 837994 52,577 7087 346176 38741 992506 198,558 1,191,064
Capital contribution by a non-contraling —SHBATFERES
equty holder of subsidlary BEALILE - - - - - - - 1491 1491
Dividend paid (note 11) BRBRE (1) - - - - - 874 (3874) - (38 74)
Transactions with owners BEBEARS - - - - - [B8741) (38741 14911 (23830)
Profitoss) for the year ERgtl/(5E) - - - - 143768 - 143768 (2805) 140963
Exchange differences on translation of RERSBITRRL
financial statements of foreign operations ERER - - - (1659 - - [1659) - (1659
Total comprehensive income for the year — EAZ2 BN RAE - - - (1655 143768 - 14213 (2805 139,308
Transfer to statutory reserve BRDATHE - - 7530 - (7530) - - - -
At 31 March 2014 RZE-ILE=A=+-A 9931 537994 60,107 5432 482,414 1,095,878 0,664 1,306,542
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
mERREBR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

Equity attributable to the owners of the Company

RARER NGRS
Non-
Share Share  Statutory Exchange  Retained controlling Total
capital premium*  reserve*  reserve*  profits* Total interest equity
FER
Rk ROEE* iERE EXRE SRER” &t BR  ERAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR ARMTR
(Note 28(i) (Note 26(ii))

(K&t 28() - (R 28(i)

At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014

Transactions with owners

Profit/{oss) for the year

Exchange differences on translation of

R-E-ME=A
RZE-DEMN
BEENIXS

Emadl/ (B8)

=t-A

A-H 9931 537,99 60,107 5432 482414 1095878 210664 1,306,542

- - - - 929 92,926 (3063 89,873

BEBI B BRRL

financial statements of foreign operations ERERE - - - 1534 - 1534 - 1534
Total comprehensive income for the year — EA2ENHAEE - - - 153 906 94460 305y 91407
Transfer to statutory reserve BRETTRE - - 6,332 - (6,332 - - -
At 31 March 2015 RZE-1E=R=1-H 9931 537,994 66,439 6,966 569,008 1,190,338 207,611 1,397,949

The aggregate amount of these balances of RMB1, 180,407,000 * FZERRERAS LA RE1,180,407,0007T (= Z —PY

(2014: RMB1,085,947,000) in surplus is included as reserves in

F : AR 1,085,947,0007C ) GTALRE I M AEKZ

the consolidated statement of financial position. 1BEA o

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015

49




50

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A gl — 1
SmERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-Z-AF=A=+—HLFE

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
P aE AR¥T T AREFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBMELEEERE
Profit before income tax R 1S E0 AR A 144,447 214,363
Adjustments for: BTYIEB LA
Interest income A B (7,377) (6,404)
Depreciation e 1,194 1,007
Share of results of joint ventures JEMhEE DS 1,219 480
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE REEKE
and equipment (53) -
Fair value adjustment on investment HEMERERE
properties and properties held for sale WEMFERZFEME
upon transfer to investment properties 2N FERE (37,381) (93,529)
Operating profit before working capital EBESEBF 2 L E R
changes 102,049 115,917
Increase in properties held under development FiZ5rR )2 N R E 92128 1
and properties held for sale (189,000) (239,084)
Increase in accounts receivable JFE AT BR R 1 (874) 657)
Increase in prepayments and other receivables & {5 5k T8 K E Ath fE UG ZRIBIE AN (82,018) (386,362)
Increase/(decrease) in accounts FERTBR IR R =W 00, O )
and bills payables 41,299 (5,314)
Increase in accruals, receipts in advance and  [ExtFkIE - AU EIA
other payables K E Ath B A FRIBIE A1 301,655 218,154
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEEBAE (TR Re 173,111 (297,346)
Interest received B UF B, 10,614 2,769
Income tax paid BTFEH (29,835) (74,086)
Net cash generated from/(used in) KETEBAE(FTA) R /F58
operating activities 153,890 (368,663)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHMELERERE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment ~ [EEWE - ME N & H (975) (1,993)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEDE - R MREMSI0E
and equipment 536 98
Advances to joint ventures MAEREAR (3,436) (8,768)
Increase in prepayment and other receivables & {5 518 K EAth FE UG ZRIBIE AN - (4,505)
Increase in structured bank deposits R IRTTI I8N (154,000) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits BIEMFEROR D (32h0) 144,369 (302,048)
Net cash used in investing activities KEEBIARSEE (13,506) (317,216)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
HEBERER

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—B-HF —T—F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt e ARET T ARBTT
Cash flows from financing activities METEBMELEESRE
Proceeds from new borrowings B EFTSA 294,000 860,173
Repayments of borrowings BEEE (239,841) (270,000)
Dividend paid BERRE - (38,741)
Capital contribution by non-controlling R R LB
interests - 14,911
Interest paid BRHE (80,188) (51,971)
Net cash (used in)/generated from financing A EZ 8 (BrHH) Hris
activities B FEE (26,029) 514,372
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and RERESEEY
cash equivalents #hn G ) FEEE 114,355 (171,507)
Effect of foreign exchange rates, net ER 2855 1,537 (1,642)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of FUREMREEEYD
year 67,768 240,917
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRBEERBFLZEY 22 183,660 67,768
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-T-AF=A=t+-BLFE

1.

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in Bermuda on 5
January 2011 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
The registered office of the Company is located at
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM
11, Bermuda and the principal place of business of
the Company is located at Room 1215, Tower B,
Hunghom Commercial Centre, 37-39 Ma Tau Wai
Road, Hunghom, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements. The directors of
the Company considered Pan Hong Property Group
Limited (“Pan Hong Property”), a company listed
on the Main Board of Singapore Exchange Security
Trading Limited, as the ultimate holding company.

The consolidated financial statements on pages
44 to 122 have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collectively includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKAS”) and
Interpretations (“Int”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
“HKICPA”). The consolidated financial statements
also include the applicable disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2015 were approved for issue by
the board of directors (the “Board”) on 23 June 2015.
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING

In current year, the Group has applied, for the first
time, the following new and revised standards,
amendments and interpretations (the “new HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants which are relevant to and effective
for the Group’s financial statements for the annual
period beginning on 1 April 2014.

Amendments to Offsetting Financial Assets and

HKAS 32 Financial Liabilities
Amendments Investment entities
to HKFRS 10,

HKFRS 12 and
HKAS 27 (2011)

Amendments to Novation of Derivatives and

HKAS 39 Continuation of Hedge
Accounting
HK (IFRIC) 21 Levies

Except as explained below, the adoption of the new
HKFRSs has no material impact on the Group’s
financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 32 - Offsetting Financial
Assets and Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the offsetting requirements
by adding appliance guidance to HKAS 32 which
clarifies when an entity “currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off” and when a gross
settlement mechanism is considered equivalent
to net settlement. The amendments are applied
retrospectively.

The adoption of the amendments has no impact on
these financial statements as the Group does not
have any offsetting arrangements.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE
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2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

ST EE (&)

The following new and amended HKFRSs which
are potentially relevant to the Group’s financial
statements, have been issued, but are not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by the

ATEE] R EERT 2 TR M H S R R gE A AN &
B SRR AR WO BMEREARER - RILKE
REBRRHRN

Group:

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2010-
(Amendments) 2012 Cycle?

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2011-
(Amendments) 2013 Cycle!

HKFRSs Annual Improvements 2012-
(Amendments) 2014 Cycle®

Amendments to Disclosure Initiative®
HKAS 1

Amendments to Equity Method in Separate
HKAS 27 Financial Statements®

HKFRS 9 (2014) Financial Instruments®

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with

Customers*

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 July
2014

2 Effective for annual periods beginning, or transactions
occurring, on or after 1 July 2014

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016

N Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2017

5 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2018

Annual Improvements 2010-2012 Cycle, 2011-
2013 Cycle and 2012-2014 Cycle

The amendments issued under the annual
improvements process make small, non-urgent
changes to a number of standards where they are
currently unclear.
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)
HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for the
classification and measurement of financial assets.
Debt instruments that are held within a business
model whose objective is to hold assets in order to
collect contractual cash flows (the business model
test) and that have contractual terms that give rise
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding
(the contractual cash flow characteristics test)
are generally measured at amortised cost. Debt
instruments that meet the contractual cash flow
characteristics test are measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”) if
the objective of the entity’s business model is both
to hold and collect the contractual cash flows and
to sell the financial assets. Entities may make an
irrevocable election at initial recognition to measure
equity instruments that are not held for trading
at FVTOCI. All other debt and equity instruments
are measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL").

HKFRS 9 includes a new expected loss impairment
model for all financial assets not measured at FVTPL
replacing the incurred loss model in HKAS 39 and
new general hedge accounting requirements to
allow entities to better reflect their risk management
activities in financial statements.

HKFRS 9 carries forward the recognition,
classification and measurement requirements for
financial liabilities from HKAS 39, except for financial
liabilities designated at FVTPL, where the amount
of change in fair value attributable to change in
credit risk of the liability is recognised in other
comprehensive income unless that would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch. In addition,
HKFRS 9 retains the requirements in HKAS 39
for derecognition of financial assets and financial
liabilities.
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2.

BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9 (2014) - Financial Instruments
(continued)

HKFRS 9 will be effective for accounting period
beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of
HKFRS 9 in the future may have a material impact on
amounts reported in respect of the Group’s financial
assets and financial liabilities; especially the Company
has financial assets classified as available-for-sale.
However, it is not practicable to provide reasonable
estimate of the effect of HKFRS 9 until the Group
undertakes a detailed review.

In relation to the impairment of financial assets,
HKFRS 9 requires an expected credit loss model,
as opposed to an incurred credit loss model under
HKFRS 39. The expected credit loss model requires
an entity to account for expected credit losses and
changes in those expected credit losses at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since
initial recognition. Consequently, it is no longer
necessary for a credit event to have occurred before
credit losses are recognised. Due to the recent
release of this standard, the entity has not yet made
a detailed assessment of the impact of this standard.

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers

The new standard establishes a single revenue
recognition framework. The core principle of the
framework is that an entity should recognise
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods
or services to customers in an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for those goods and services.
HKFRS 15 supersedes existing revenue recognition
guidance including HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11
Construction Contracts and related interpretations.
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BASIS OF ACCOUNTING (CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15 - Revenue from Contracts with
Customers (continued)

HKFRS 15 requires the application of a 5 steps
approach to revenue recognition:

° Step 1:  Identify the contract(s) with a
customer

o Step 2:  Identify the performance obligations
in the contract

o Step 3:  Determine the transaction price

° Step 4. Allocate the transaction price to each
performance obligation

° Step 5: Recognise revenue when each

performance obligation is satisfied

HKFRS 15 includes specific guidance on particular
revenue related topics that may change the current
approach taken under HKFRS. The standard also
significantly enhances the qualitative and quantitative
disclosures related to revenue.

HKFRS 15 will take effect from financial years
beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The Group is
currently evaluating the impact of the changes in the
period of initial adoption.

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised
HKFRSs upon initial application but is not yet in a
position to state whether these new and revised
HKFRSs would have a significant impact on the
Group’s results of operations and financial position.

In addition, the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(Cap. 622) will affect the presentation and disclosure
of certain information in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ending 31 March 2016. The
Group is in the process of marking an assessment of
the impact of these changes.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are summarised below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented
unless otherwise stated. The adoption of new and
revised HKFRSs and the impacts on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are
disclosed in note 2.

3.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost basis,
except for investment properties which are
stated at fair values. The measurement bases
are fully described in the accounting policies
below.

The financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand (“RMB’000”), except
when otherwise indicated.

It should be noted that the accounting
estimates and assumptions are used in
preparing these financial statements. Although
these estimates are based on management’s
best knowledge and judgment of current
events and actions, actual results may
ultimately differ from those estimates. The
areas involving a higher degree of judgment
or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 4.

3.2 Basis of consolidation and business
combination

The consolidated financial statements
incorporate the financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (note 3.3) made
up to 31 March each year.

Inter-company transactions and balances
between group companies together with
unrealised profits are eliminated in full in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of impairment on
the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

3.

ETESHBRME

RMEEAVBRRARAZ EZSTERBAR T
X BRARBEAN  ZFERREKEBERARAA
E2INEFEE - MR MEEFT BBV HREER
EEAREEEAEMBHRRCFE(WH) BERHE
Do

3.1 mEEXE

SAMBERD REEENALEY  E8E
WD TEFIEB N - SHEEERAR T X
GBS -

MBREUARBTARB] 2% MAA
BESBEHZEEZEANTL(ARET
TTl)  MERBERERIN

BRI ERBEAZEM B REGRB ST AT
KB - BEREEAHREEEEYEMNS
HRITE 2 RERMRHABMEL - HERS
REEAREZE[HATFEER - FREEYH
Bk R BEIS R AP BEHRRBEK
ZRER R fhat 2 SRS RE R HIEE4 o

32 HGEEERXEBKSH

GAMBRERERRARANBR A (i
33)BEST=A=+—AILZHBRE -

SEARRM RS MEHRER AT E NI
RREEGAMEHRRR2HEE - RIFFER
ZREMEEEEREZER  SRRERE
BN T AR - EUER T - BERERRE

2y
AR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHBFEME (E&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.2 Basis of consolidation and business 3.2 HMEEEREKAHE)

combination (continued)

The results of subsidiaries acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income from the effective dates of acquisition
or up to the effective dates of disposal, as
appropriate. Where necessary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of subsidiaries
to bring their accounting policies in line with
those used by other members of the Group.

Acquisition of subsidiaries or businesses is
accounted for using the acquisition method.
The cost of an acquisition is measured at the
aggregate of the acquisition-date fair value
of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and
equity interests issued by the Group, as the
acquirer. The identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed are principally measured
at acquisition date fair value. The Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured at acquisition-date fair value and
the resulting gains or losses are recognised in
profit or loss.

The Group may elect, on a transaction-
by-transaction basis, to measure the non-
controlling interest that represent present
ownership interests in the subsidiary either at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
non-controlling interests are measured at fair
value unless another measurement basis is
required by HKFRS. Acquisition-related costs
incurred are expensed unless they are incurred
in issuing equity instruments in which case the
costs are deducted from equity.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the acquirer is recognised at acquisition
date fair value. Subsequent adjustments to
consideration are recognised against goodwill
only to the extent that they arise from new
information obtained within the measurement
period (@ maximum of 12 months from the
acquisition date) about the fair value at
the acquisition date. All other subsequent
adjustments to contingent consideration
classified as an asset or a liability are
recognised in profit or loss.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2

3.3

Basis of consolidation and business
combination (continued)

Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries
that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions. The
carrying amounts of the Group’s interest and
the non-controlling interest are adjusted to
reflect the changes in their relative interests in
the subsidiaries. Any difference between the
amount by which the non-controlling interest is
adjusted and the fair value of the consideration
paid or received is recognised directly in equity
and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary,
the profit or loss on disposal is calculated as
the difference between () the aggregate of
the fair value of the consideration received
and the fair value of any retained interest
and (i) the previous carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities
of the subsidiary and any non-controlling
interest. Amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income in relation to
the subsidiary are accounted for in the same
manner as would be required if the relevant
assets or liabilities were disposed of.

Subsequent to acquisition, the carrying amount
of non-controlling interests that represent
present ownership interests in the subsidiary
is the amount of those interests at initial
recognition plus the non-controlling interest’s
share of subsequent changes in equity. Total
comprehensive income is attributed to non-
controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interest having a deficit balance.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an investee over which the
Company is able to exercise control. The
Company controls an investee if all three of
the following elements are present: power over
the investee, exposure, or rights, to variable
returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns.
Control is reassessed whenever facts and
circumstances indicate that there may be a
change in any of these elements of control.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3

3.4

Subsidiaries (continued)

In the Company’s statement of financial
position, investments in subsidiaries are
stated at cost less impairment loss, if any. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the
Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Joint arrangements

The Group is a party to a joint arrangement
where there is a contractual arrangement that
confers joint control over the relevant activities
of the arrangement to the group and at least
one other party. Joint control is assessed
under the same principles as control over
subsidiaries.

The Group classifies its interests in joint
arrangements as either:

- Joint ventures: where the group has
rights to only the net assets of the joint
arrangement; or

- Joint operations: where the group has
both the rights to assets and obligations
for the liabilities of the joint arrangement.

In assessing the classification of interests in
joint arrangements, the Group considers:

The structure of the joint arrangement;

- The legal form of joint arrangements
structured through a separate vehicle;

- The contractual terms of the joint
arrangement agreement; and

- Any other facts and circumstances
(including any other contractual
arrangements).

The Group accounts for its interests in joint
ventures using the equity method whereby they
are initially recognised at cost and thereafter,
their carrying amount are adjusted for the
Group’s share of the post-acquisition change in
the joint ventures’ net assets except that losses
in excess of the Group’s interest in the joint
ventures are not recognised unless there is an
obligation to make good those losses.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.4 Joint arrangements (continued)

Profits and losses arising on transactions
between the Group and its joint ventures are
recognised only to the extent of unrelated
investors’ interests in joint ventures. The
investor’s share in the joint ventures’ profits
and losses resulting from these transactions
is eliminated against the carrying value of the
interests in joint ventures. Where unrealised
losses provide evidence of impairment of
the asset transferred they are recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Any premium paid for an investment in a joint
venture above the fair value of the Group’s
share of the identifiable assets, liabilities and
contingent liabilities acquired is capitalised
and included in the carrying amount of the
investment in joint venture. Where there is
objective evidence that the investment in a joint
venture has been impaired the carrying amount
of the investment is tested for impairment in the
same way as other non-financial assets.

The Group accounts for its interests joint
operations by recognising its share of
assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses in
accordance with its contractually conferred
rights and obligations.

The Company’s interests in joint ventures are
stated at cost less impairment losses, if any.
Results of joint ventures are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHBFEME (E&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5 Foreign currency translation 3.5 HEBRE
The consolidated financial statements are i*/\ﬁﬁkxﬁi'%u)\ﬁﬁ% 5 M AREIN AR
presented in RMB, which is also the functional NAZIEEEE -
currency of the Company.
In the individual financial statements of REREERZERSMBHREF - INEZHER
the consolidated entities, foreign currency RLEGHBITZERBE AERNEE S
transactions are translated into the functional o NERE B L/WW%HEZT%%?&E

currency of the individual entity using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the reporting date, monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at that date. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
reporting date retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items carried at fair value that
are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined and are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured at
historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

In the consolidated financial statements,
all individual financial statements of foreign
operations, originally presented in a currency
different from the Group’s presentation
currency, have been converted into RMB.
Assets and liabilities have been translated into
RMB at the closing rates at the reporting date.
Income and expenses have been converted
into RMB at the exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates, or at the average rates
over the reporting period provided that the
exchange rates do not fluctuate significantly.
Any differences arising from this procedure
have been recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in the
translation reserve in equity.

When a foreign operation is disposed of, such
exchange differences are reclassified from
equity to profit or loss as part of the gain or
loss on disposal.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.6

3.7

Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable for the sale
of properties, rendering of services and the use
by others of the Group’s assets yielding interest
and dividends, net of rebates and discounts.
Provided it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and the revenue
and costs, if applicable, can be measured
reliably, revenue is recognised as follows:

Revenue arising from sale of properties held
for sale is recognised upon the transfer of the
significant risks and rewards of ownership of
these properties held for sale to the customers.
Revenue is recognised upon the transfer of
the legal title or the passing of possession to
the buyer or a completion certificate by the
relevant government authorities, whichever is
the later. Deposits and instalments received
from customers prior to the date of revenue
recognition are included in current liabilities as
receipts in advance.

Consultancy fee income is recognised at the
time when the service are rendered.

Interest income is recognised on a time-
proportion basis using the effective interest
method.

Rental income receivable under operating
leases is recognised in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease terms.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. The cost of an asset
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to the
working condition and location for its intended
use. Subsequent costs are included in the
asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a
separate asset, as appropriate, only when
it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are charged to the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income during the
period in which they are incurred.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.7

3.8

Property, plant and equipment

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost
of property, plant and equipment over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight line
method, at the following rates per annum:

Computers and other equipment 20.0%
Motor vehicles 20.0%
Buildings 2.5%

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date.

Fully depreciated property, plant and
equipment are retained in the financial
statements until they are no longer in use.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or
disposal is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or buildings
which are owned or held under a leasehold
interest to earn rental income and/or for capital
appreciation. These include land held for a
currently undetermined future use and property
that is being constructed or developed for
future use as investment property.

On initial recognition, investment properties
are measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, unless it is still in the course of
construction or development at the reporting
date and its fair value cannot be reliably
determined at that time.

Fair value is determined by external
professional valuers with sufficient experience
with respect to both the location and the nature
of the investment properties. The carrying
amounts recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position reflect the
prevailing market conditions at the reporting
date.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8

3.9

Investment properties (continued)

Gain or loss arising from either a change in
fair value or the sale of investment properties
is included in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income for the year in which it
arises.

For a transfer from properties held under
development to investment properties that is
carried at fair value, any difference between
fair value of the property at that date and its
previous carrying amount is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Properties under construction or development
for future use as an investment property
are classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably
determined, the investment property under
construction will be measured at cost until
such time as fair value can be determined or
construction is completed.

When the Group completes the construction or
development of a self-constructed investment
property, any difference between the fair value
of the property at the completion date and
its previous carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment and the
interests in subsidiaries and a joint venture are
subject to impairment testing and are tested
for impairment whenever there are indications
that the assets’ carrying amount may not be
recoverable.

An impairment loss is recognised as an
expense immediately for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of fair value, reflecting market
conditions less cost to sell, and value in use.
In assessing value in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.9

3.10

Impairment of non-financial assets
(continued)

For the purposes of assessing impairment,
where an asset does not generate cash inflows
largely independent from those from other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generate
cash inflows independently (i.e. a cash
generating unit). As a result, some assets are
tested individually for impairment and some are
tested at cash-generating unit level.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has
been a favourable change in the estimates
used to determine the asset’s recoverable
amount and only to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined, net
of depreciation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.

Leases

An arrangement, comprising a transaction or
a series of transactions, is or contains a lease
if the Group determines that the arrangement
conveys a right to use a specific asset or
assets for an agreed period of time in return
for a payment or a series of payments. Such a
determination is made based on an evaluation
of the substance of the arrangement and is
regardless of whether the arrangement takes
the legal form of a lease.

Leases where substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of assets remain within
the lessor are accounted for as operating
lease. Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income on a straight line basis over the lease
terms except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased assets. Lease
incentives received are recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income as an integral part of the aggregate
net lease payments made. Contingent rental
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10 Leases (continued)

3.11

Leasehold interests in land are up-front
payments to acquire the land use right. The
payments are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated on the straight-line
basis over the lease term.

For leasehold interest in land included in
properties held under development and
properties held for sale, the amortisation of
prepaid land lease is capitalised as part of the
building costs during the development period
but charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for completed
properties. Other amortisation of prepaid land
lease is expensed.

Properties leased out under operating leases
are included in the consolidated statement
of financial position as investment properties.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to
the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognised on a straight-line-basis over the
lease term. The recognition of rental income is
set out in note 3.6.

Financial assets

The Group’s accounting policies for financial
assets are set out below.

Financial assets of the Group are classified into
loans and receivables.

Management determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition depending
on the purpose for which the financial assets
were acquired and where allowed and
appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at
every reporting date.

All financial assets are recognised when, and
only when, the Group becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. All
regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade date. When
financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of
investments not at fair value through profit or
loss, directly attributable transaction costs.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. TESHBERHEEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.11 ERMEE (&)

3.11 Financial assets (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets occurs
when the rights to receive cash flows from
the investments expire or are transferred and
substantially all of the risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred.

At each reporting date, financial assets are
reviewed to assess whether there is objective
evidence of impairment. If any such evidence
exists, impairment loss is determined and
recognised based on the classification of the
financial asset.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative
financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active
market. Loans and receivables are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less any impairment losses.
Amortised cost is calculated taking into account
any discount or premium on acquisition and
includes fees that are an integral part of the
effective interest rate and transaction cost.

At each reporting date, loans and receivables
are reviewed to determine whether there is any
objective evidence of impairment.

Objective evidence of impairment of individual
financial asset includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a default
or delinquency in interest or principal
payments;

- it becoming probable that the debtor
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11 Financial assets (continued)

Loans and receivables (continued)

- significant changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment
that have an adverse effect on the
debtor; and

- a significant or prolonged decline in the
fair value of an investment in an equity
instrument below its cost.

Loss events in respect of a group of financial
assets include observable data indicating
that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from the group
of financial assets. Such observable data
includes but not limited to adverse changes
in the payment status of debtors in the group
and, national or local economic conditions
that correlate with defaults on the assets in the

group.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment
loss on loans and receivables carried at
amortised cost has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’s carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash
flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the
financial asset’s original effective interest rate
(i.e. the effective interest rate computed at
initial recognition). The amount of the loss is
recognised in the profit or loss of the period
in which the impairment occurs. In relation to
trade and notes receivables, a provision for
impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as the probability of insolvency
or significant financial difficulties of the debtor)
that the Group will not be able to collect all
of the amounts due under the original terms
of the invoice. Except for trade and notes
receivables, the carrying amount of loans and
receivables is directly reduced by any identified
amount of impairment. The carrying amount
of financial asset is reduced through the use
of an allowance account. When any part of
financial asset is determined as uncollectible, it
is written off against the allowance account for
the relevant financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11

3.12

Financial assets (continued)
Loans and receivables (continued)

If, in subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is
reversed to the extent that it does not result
in a carrying amount of the financial asset
exceeding what the amortised cost would have
been had the impairment not been recognised
at the date the impairment is reversed. The
amount of the reversal is recognised in profit
or loss during the period in which the reversal
occurs.

Properties held under development

Properties held under development which
are held for future sale are included in
current assets and comprise land held under
operating lease (note 3.10) and capitalised
depreciation of certain property, plant and
equipment (note 14) and aggregate cost of
development, materials and supplies, wages,
and other expenses (“development costs”).
Properties held under development are stated
at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Other expenses included (a) those costs that
are incurred in bringing the properties held
under development to their present location
and condition; and (b) a systematic allocation
of fixed overheads that are incurred on
development of properties. Fixed overheads
are indirect costs which remain relatively
constant regardless of the size or volume of the
development.

On completion, the properties are transferred
to properties held for sale. Cost is calculated
using the weighted average method.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and applicable
selling expenses.

Properties under development are classified as
current assets unless the construction period
of the relevant property development project is
expected to complete beyond normal operating
cycle.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.13

3.14

Properties held for sale

In case of completed properties developed
by the Group, cost is determined by
apportionment of the total development costs
for that development project, attributable to
the unsold properties. The cost of completed
properties held for sale comprises all costs of
purchase, cost of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition.

Properties held for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business less estimated
selling expenses.

Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income tax assets and/or liabilities
comprise those obligations to, or claims from,
fiscal authorities relating to the current or
prior reporting period, that are unpaid at the
reporting date. They are calculated according
to the tax rates and tax laws applicable to the
fiscal periods to which they relate, based on
the taxable profit for the year. All changes to
current tax assets or liabilities are recognised
as a component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability
method on temporary differences at the
reporting date between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, tax losses available to be carried
forward as well as other unused tax credits,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax
losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. IEETHBREE@E
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.14 FIEBlzastRE ()

3.14 Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a
transaction that affects neither taxable nor
accounting profit or loss.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for
taxable temporary differences arising on
investments in subsidiaries and associates,
except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting,
at tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period the liability is settled or the asset
realised, provided they are enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.

An exception to the general requirement on
determining the appropriate tax rate used in
measuring deferred tax amount is when an
investment property is carried at fair value
under HKAS 40 “Investment Property”. Unless
the presumption is rebutted, the deferred
tax amounts on these investment properties
are measured using the tax rates that would
apply on sale of these investment properties
at their carrying amounts at the reporting
date. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held
within a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all the economic benefits
embodied in the property over time, rather than
through sale.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if
they relate to items that are charged or credited
to other comprehensive income or directly to
equity.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.14

3.15

Accounting for income taxes (continued)

Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are
presented in net if, and only if,

(@ the Group has the legally enforceable
right to set off the recognised amounts;

(b) current tax assets and current tax
liabilities are presented in net; and

(c) intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

The Group presents deferred tax assets and
deferred tax liabilities in net if, and only if,

(@ the entity has a legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities; and

(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred
tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either:

(i) the same taxable entity; or

(i)  different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax
liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant
amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled
or recovered.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at
bank and in hand, demand deposits with banks
and short term highly liquid investments with
original maturities of three months or less that
are readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, less pledged deposits.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.16

3.17

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share
capital is determined using the nominal value of
shares that have been issued.

Share premium includes any premiums
received on the issuance of shares over the
par value. Any transaction costs associated
with the issuance of shares are deducted from
share premium (net of any related income tax
benefit) to the extent they are incremental costs
directly attributable to the equity transaction.

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

The Group operates a defined contribution
scheme (“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme Ordinance which
is available to its employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions to the MPF Scheme by the
Group and employees are made based on a
percentage of employees’ basic salaries and
are charged to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income as they become
payable in accordance with the rules of the
MPF Scheme.

Pursuant to the relevant regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”), the
Group has participated in a local municipal
government retirement benefit scheme (the
“Scheme”), whereby the Group is required
to contribute a certain percentage of basic
salaries of its employees to the Scheme
to fund their retirement benefits. The local
municipal government undertakes to assume
the retirement benefits obligations of all existing
and future retired employees in the PRC. The
only obligation of the Group with respect to
the Scheme is to pay the ongoing required
contributions under the Scheme mentioned
above. The Group’s contributions to the
Scheme are expensed as incurred.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.17

3.18

Retirement benefit costs and short-term
employee benefits (continued)

Short-term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that
are expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the
related service. Short term employee benefits
are recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service

Non-accumulating compensated absences
such as sick leave and maternity leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include accounts
and bill payables, accruals and other payables
and bank and other loans.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the
Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All interest related
charges are recognised in accordance with the
Group’s policy on borrowing costs (note 3.21).

A financial liability is derecognised when the
obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced
by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of
an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference
in respective carrying amount is recognised in
the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.18

3.19

Financial liabilities (continued)
Bank and other loans

Bank and other loans are recognised initially
at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Bank and other loans are subsequently stated
at amortised cost; any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognised in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive
income over the period of the loans using the
effective interest method.

Bank and other loans are classified as current
liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the reporting date.

Accounts and bill payables and accruals
and other payables

Accounts and bill payables and accruals
and other payables are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest
method.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has
a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
of the amount of the obligation can be made.
Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditure expected to settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at each reporting
date and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate.
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3.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.19

3.20

Provisions and contingent liabilities
(continued)

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more
future uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group, are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Contingent liabilities are recognised in the
course of the allocation of purchase price to
the assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination. They are initially measured
at fair value at the date of acquisition and
subsequently measured at the higher of
the amount that would be recognised in a
comparable provision as described above
and the amount initially recognised less any
accumulated amortisation, if appropriate.

Financial guarantees issued

A financial guarantee contract is a contract
that requires the issuer (or guarantor) to make
specified payments to reimburse the holder for
a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with
the terms of a debt instrument.

Where the Group issues a financial guarantee,
the fair value of the guarantee is initially
recognised as deferred income within accounts
and other payables. Where consideration is
received or receivable for the issuance of the
guarantee, the consideration is recognised
in accordance with the Group’s policies
applicable to that category of asset. Where no
such consideration is received or receivable,
an immediate expense is recognised in profit
or loss on initial recognition of any deferred
income.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20

3.21

3.22

Financial guarantees issued (continued)

The amount of the guarantee initially
recognised as deferred income is amortised in
profit or loss over the term of the guarantee as
income from financial guarantees issued.

In addition, provisions are recognised if and
when it becomes probable that the holder of
the guarantee will call upon the Group under
the guarantee and the amount of that claim
on the Group is expected to exceed the
current carrying amount i.e. the amount initially
recognised less accumulated amortisation,
where appropriate.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs incurred for the acquisition,
construction or production of any qualifying
asset are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the
asset for its intended use. A qualifying asset is
an asset which necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use
or sale. Other finance costs are expensed.

Borrowing costs are capitalised as part of the
cost of a qualifying asset when expenditure for
the asset is being incurred, borrowing costs are
being incurred and activities that are necessary
to prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale are being undertaken. Capitalisation of
borrowing costs ceases when substantially
all the activities necessary to prepare the
qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
completed.

Dividends

Final dividends proposed by the directors are
classified as a separate allocation of retained
profits within equity, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting. When these dividends are approved
and declared, they are recognised as a liability.
Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared and consequently, interim
dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.
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3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. FEGHBEHEE)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
3.23 Related parties 3.23 BEER
(@ A person or a close member of that @ MWM—BATATIER BlEZATZ
person’s family is related to the Group if ATCZERRBEASEGHE -
that person:
()  has control or joint control over the ()  HARKREFEERILRITHIE
Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the iy HEREBEEERTE 3k
Group; or
(i) is a member of key management (i) AEREEXARRHFAFIEEE
personnel of the Group or the BEKE -
Company’s parent.
Key management personnel are those persons FREEABRBENILAEBEIEEMET
having authority and responsibility for planning, | EEEMEEHAREESANATEEHAER -
directing, and controlling the activities of the BEREERAATFRNEE(THE2EHT
Group or the Company, directly or indirectly, =)

including any directors (whether executive or
otherwise) of the Group or the Company.

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of () HW—REBRE FIEMGEH B8R
the following conditions apply: SEEH:E
()  The entity and the Group are () ZERBEASEBR-—SBEKE
members of the same group (which Aal (A& RAF - HERAR LA
means that each parent, subsidiary RMBARIEHEM T AREE) °

and fellow subsidiary is related to
the others).

(i)  One entity is an associate or joint i) —REBASETREIZEZERAIN
venture of the other entity (or an AETE(RAEEBEKNERNAZ
associate or joint venture of a g NreeahE MR —EE
member of a group of which the BZEBZKERT]) -

other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of iy MREBHRA-—F=Az&6&nR
the same third party. ¥o

(v) One entity is a joint venture of a vy —XEBRE=-FEBZE&ED
third entity and the other entity is an ¥ ME—EBERRRE=-FEEZ
associate of the third entity. il I

(v The entity is a post-employment V) ZREBATSENMEAEESHE
benefit plan for the benefit of the 2B AEBF SR BT
employees of the Group or an entity B

related to the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.23

3.24

Related parties (continued)
(b)  (continued)

(v  The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in
(a).

(vl A person identified in (a)(i) has

significant influence over the entity

or is a member of key management

personnel of the entity (or of a

parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity and include:

(i) that person’s children and spouse or
domestic partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or
domestic partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that
person’s spouse or domestic partner.

Segment reporting

The Group identifies operating segments and
prepares segment information based on the
regular internal financial information reported
to the executive directors for their decisions
about resources allocation to the Group’s
business components and for their review of
the performance of those components.

Individually material operating segments are
not aggregated for financial reporting purposes
unless the segments have similar economic
characteristics and are similar in respect of the
nature of products and services, the nature
of production processes, the type or class of
customers, the methods used to distribute
the products or provide the services, and the
nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material
may be aggregated if they share a majority of
these criteria.
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4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

4.1

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions
concerning the future. The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definition, seldom equal to
the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below:

Fair value of investment properties and
properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties

Properties held for sale upon transfer to
investment properties of the Group were
stated at fair value in accordance with the
accounting policy. The fair value of the
investment properties is determined by a firm of
independently qualified professional surveyors
and the fair value of investment properties as
at the reporting dates and properties held for
sale upon transfer to investment properties are
set out in notes 15 and 19 respectively. Such
valuation was based on certain assumptions,
which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results.

Impairment of accounts and other
receivables

The Group’s management assesses the
collectability of accounts and other receivables.
This estimate is based on the credit history of
its customers or counterparties and the current
market condition. Management reassesses the
impairment loss at the reporting date.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.1

4.2

Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (continued)

Net realisable value of properties held
for sale and properties held under
development

Management determines the net realisable
value of properties held for sale and properties
under development by using prevailing market
data such as most recent sale transactions
and valuation of projects in its existing partially
completed state of construction taking into
account cost of work done, and cost to
completion from gross development value
assuming satisfactory completion.

These estimates require judgement as to the
anticipated sale prices by reference to recent
sales transactions in nearby locations, rate of
new property sales, marketing costs (including
price discounts required to stimulate sales) and
the expected costs of completion of properties,
the legal and regulatory framework and general
market conditions.

Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies

Revenue recognition

The Group has recognised revenue from sale
of properties held for sale during the year as
disclosed in note 6 to the financial statements.
The assessment of when an entity has
transferred the significant risks and rewards
of ownership to buyer requires examination of
the circumstances of the transaction. In most
cases, the transfer of risks and rewards of
ownership coincides with the transfer of the
legal title or the passing of possession to the
buyer or a completion certificate is issued by
the relevant government authorities. The Group
believes that its recognition basis of sales as
set out in note 3.6 is appropriate and is the
current practice in the PRC.
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BE

4.

—E-RFE=A=t+—HILEE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s
accounting policies (continued)

Estimates of current tax and deferred tax

The Group is subject to taxation in various
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required
in determining the amount of the provision
of taxation and the timing of payment of the
related taxation. Where the final tax outcome
is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the
income tax and deferred tax provisions in
periods in which such determination are made.

The Group is subject to Land Appreciation
Tax (“LAT”) in the PRC. However, the
implementation and settlement of this tax varies
among various tax jurisdictions in cities of the
PRC, and the Group has not finalised its LAT
calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in the PRC. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the
amount of the land appreciation and its related
LAT. The Group recognised LAT based on
management’s best estimates according to the
understanding of the tax rules.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An operating segment is a component of the Group
that is engaged in business activities from which the
Group may earn revenue and incur expenses, and
is identified on the basis of the internal management
reporting information that is provided to and regularly
reviewed by the Group’s executive directors in order
to allocate resources and assess performance of
the segment. For the years presented, executive
directors have determined that the Group has only
one single business component/reportable segment
as the Group is only engaged in the business of sale
and lease of properties which is the basis to allocate
resources and assess performance.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

The geographical location of the specified non-
current assets is based on the physical location
of the asset, in the case of property, plant and
equipment, the location of the operation. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, the majority
of the Group’s operation and centre of management
are sourced from its subsidiaries in Jiangxi Province,
the PRC, which considered that the operation
base of the Group is domiciled in the PRC, as one
geographical location and therefore, no analysis of
geographical information is presented.

The total revenue from external customers is mainly
sourced from the PRC. The total revenue is disclosed
in note 6.

There is no single customer that contributed to 10%
or more of the Group’s revenue for the year ended
31 March 2015 and 2014.

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, and

other income recognised during the year are as
follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

2 HRPE R (5)

EEFRDEEMAEMER ZE D TIAZEEMEN
REE - WMEME -  BEERBRINAEEEZME
WEREE - ARREERR AEBAZHEE
REBRLEREERTEIIAE ZMEBAR &
RR/XTEERZ CEEMUNTE - B—(EmE -
I 4% 2 513 3R E R AT

SNERE P 2 WA KERRE BB - AR
BERENHIEEG ©

HE - Z—REER-_ZT—NF=ZA=+—HItF
G WEE—RF(EARER10% A LUA -
WA R E A A

FERERZ WA (TFAKRER Y 425) REMEA
o -

2015 2014
—E-AfF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Revenue A
Sale of properties held for sale HEFEYHE 500,874 476,339
Other income Hg A
Net fair value gain on investment WEMFERERERE
properties and properties held for W& 2 RBERMER
sale upon transfer to FEMELFEREFEHE
investment properties 37,381 93,529
Rental income kel G 17,621 6,669
Interest income FLEMA
— from bank deposits — RBRITHER 7,377 6,404
Gain on disposal of property, plant HEWE - BE
and equipment Bl 53 -
Consultancy fee income EERBUA - 1,271
Sundry income FEIEUA 243 -
62,675 107,873
EBEEHEREARAT FEIMRE2014/2015 85




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTEERRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

7.

FINANCE COSTS 7. ®WERAK
2015 2014
—E-hfF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Interest charges on financial BB ATIRZ
liabilities stated at amortised cost: £ @ABZFEMAX :
Bank loans wholly repayable within ARAFRNEHEEY
five years RITER 35,835 26,602
Other loans wholly repayable within HRAFAZHEEZ
five years HiER 44,353 29,862
80,188 56,464
Less: amount capitalised in properties 8 : A AL IE AT
held under development W2 SRR (80,188) (56,464)

The weighted average capitalisation rate of

borrowings was 6.92% (2014: 5.02%) per annum for —PU4F : 5.02%) °

the year.

PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. BRFTSBIANGEF

FRN - EEZINETFHEAMEERREF6.92%(—F

2015 2014
—2-1fF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Profit before income tax is arrived at BRFT{S B RTE T AL R~
after charging/(crediting): GTA) AT BIEZES
Auditor’s remuneration 2 Glll e 771 741
Cost of properties held for WRAERAZ Z FFEMEKAE
sale recognised as expense 336,879 296,420
Depreciation (note 14(b)) e (FizE14(0)) 1,194 1,007
Exchange gain, net bE H s 55 (95) (325)
Operating lease charge in respect of T RIEF 2 EEHERY
land and buildings 465 609
Less: amount capitalised in properties i : DA NMLIE AR ZE S
held under development MEZ TR (6) 6)
459 603
Outgoings in respect of investment MENKREMEREEZ
properties that generated HeWAGE MY
rental income during the year 565 379
Staff costs, including directors’ BINA(BIEEEHE)
emoluments (note 13) (BF5E13)
— Wages and salaries - ITE&EKFH® 22,953 18,176
— Retirement benefit — RIKEFIFT B
scheme contributions
— defined contribution plans — ERRHEFGETE 2,113 1,753
Less: amount capitalised in properties & : B AL IE AR ZE T
held under development Il (7,802) (8,212)
17,264 11,717

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE FrigHipa
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Current tax - the PRC BUEATHIE —
Current year REE
— Enterprise income tax (“EIT”) —IEFEH 24,197 20,972
—LAT — T IBET 21,032 24,352
45,229 45,324
Deferred income tax (note 26) IEEFTEH (M 26) 9,345 28,076
Total income tax expense FriSRiB X458 54,574 73,400

EIT has been provided on the estimated profits of
subsidiaries operating in the PRC at 25% (2014:
25%).

Under the law of the PRC on EIT, corporate
withholding income tax is levied on the foreign
investor for the dividends distributed out of the profits
generated by the foreign investment enterprises. The
Group’s applicable withholding income tax rate is at
5% (2014: 10%).

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30%
to 60% on the appreciation of land value, being the
proceeds from sales of properties less deductible
expenditures including cost and land use rights,
borrowing costs, business tax and all property
development expenditures. The tax is incurred
upon transfer of property ownership. There are
certain exemptions available for the sales of ordinary
residential properties if the appreciation values do not
exceed 20% of the total deductible items (as defined
in the relevant PRC tax laws). Sales of commercial
properties are not eligible for such an exemption.

Hong Kong profits tax is calculated at 16.5% (2014:
16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits for the
year. No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided
as the Group had no estimated assessable profits
arising in or derived from Hong Kong for both years.

TEMSH A BRZE 2B AR 2 fEaHEr
1225% (—F—0F : 25%) tEL B4 -

BEPBHCEAERE SRR EERLIRINGE
TEMEE Z DK ZEEBKEEBNFE
Fio NEEEBZEIAMEHBE A% (ZT—M
F 1 10%) °

THIRERIZ T EE ZIBEAREN E30%E
60% HUy - LHEE 2 IRERHEEMEFRSHER
AR - BREAAR N T EAE - EERA
EEBMEAAMEZRRFAN - HARNDEHREEE
BRES - HE-—RETYEEETHRE - 1S
ERAAIHEER IR R (E& LARPENR) @&
BZ220% - IHERENMEL BERRSHRHR -

BENGHIZF ARG ERVEMIA16.5% (—F
—P04F : 16.5%) 5T 8 - AR ANEERZMEFER
W\ A EB E L JESEM AT RRTOEF - R
BEREBNGHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B R RMIEE

H
e

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

9.

10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 9. FEBMX (M)
Reconciliation between income tax expense and BB R EEHRA S EEsa M 2 HEENT
accounting profit at applicable tax rates is as follows:
2015 2014
—E-AE —HE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Profit before income tax R S 30 A& A 144,447 214,363
Tax on profit before income tax, FRFrASHE AR A I8 -
calculated at the rates applicable to REBEREERRN
profit in the jurisdiction concerned HRABEE 36,112 52,933
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERBRKA Z HIBR 2 (970) (959)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses ~ NAIHIFEFI Sz 2 T TE 522 4,204 711
Provision of LAT for the year FRT IR EREE 21,032 24,352
Tax effect on EIT of LAT payable JER T IR ETR 2 (b5
FriStiz MIas & (5,258) (6,088)
Tax effect of unrecognised tax loss RERMIBBHE L RBSE 611 2,317
Utilisation of tax loss previously FRAEFRERZHRIBEE
not recognised (1,557) (2,399)
Tax effect of withholding tax TR 2 I B 400 2,533
Income tax expense FrisfiA > 54,574 73,400
PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR 10. AQATEEAEEFERER(BE)

ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Among the consolidated profit attributable to owners
of the Company during the year of approximately
RMB92,926,000 (2014: RMB143,768,000), a loss
of RMB1,356,000 (2014: RMB1,485,000) has been
dealt with the financial statements of the Company.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of
final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2015
and 2014. A final dividend of HK4 cents per ordinary
share, amounting to HK$48,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately RMB38,741,000) declared and paid
in prior year was reflected as an appropriation of
retained profits for the year ended 31 March 2014,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e R AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HALEE

12. EARNINGS PER SHARE FOR PROFIT 12. AAREEARGZENZERER
ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY
The calculation of basic earnings per share amount FRERNBFIZERNERDTEAS AEZIARK
is based on the profit for the year attributable to 92,926,000 7T ( —ZZF—PU4F : AR¥ 143,768,000 7T)
the owners of the Company of RMB92,926,000 MEANBEITERZ1,200,000,000 % (== —MH4F :
(2014: RMB143,768,000) and the ordinary shares of 1,200,000,000 %) 515 ©
1,200,000,000 (2014: 1,200,000,000) in issue during
the year.
The diluted earnings per share is the same as the AARAEBERFE RBEFE RN EETHER
basic earnings per share, as the Group has no 7 WEREEZMNEGREXRZNSEEER -
dilutive potential shares during the current and prior
years.
13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE 13. EEFH  EERSFHMALIRSAEEEMS
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT
(@) Directors’ emoluments (@) E=M<
Directors’ emoluments disclosed pursuant BIE FTR BN EE D aHEFI K E 2 R EFTH
to the Listing Rules and the disclosure BEEMMST -
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance are as follows:
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses  contributions Total
RS- 3 BARER
e  REMERN Bt HE 5 2y
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETRE  AR%Tr ARETn ARMTn ARET#R
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ-2-1%
ZRA=T-HLEE
Executive directors HiTEZ
Mr. Shi Feng RELE 502 - 132 6 640
Mr. Wong Lui (‘Mr. Wong’) AEEE(TEE)) 514 74 142 11 ™
Ms. Gao Lan (appointed on BEZT(R-E2-EF
13 August 2014) NATZBEZ) 285 - 43 6 334
Non-executive director FHTEE
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BRI T 685 144 84 - 913
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUHHTEE
Mr. Lee Man To FHEEE 143 - - - 143
Mr. Xie Gang BRI 95 - - - 95
Ms. Zhang Juan RIERT 95 - - - 95
2,319 218 401 2 2,961
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ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZF-AF=A=t+-ALFE

13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE

13. EXHFM -  AEBRSFHALRSREEENE

HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR (#)
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued) (@) E=M= (&)
Salaries, Retirement
allowances benefit
and other  Discretionary scheme
Fees benefits bonuses contributions Total
§o 20 BARER
#e  REMER BiEa AR @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARETr  AR%Tn
Year ended 31 March 2014 BZ-E-mE
ZAZT-ALERE
Executive directors HITEE
Mr. Shi Feng RESRE 634 - - 6 640
Mr. Wong Lui it 485 68 147 12 712
Non-executive director FHTEF
Ms. Chan Heung Ling BRmR R+ 647 366 79 - 1,092
Independent non-executive directors BV HHTEZ
Mr. Lee Man To TR 143 - - - 143
Mr. Xie Gang Pt 9% - - - 9%
Ms. Zhang Juan RigR T 9% - - - 95
2,09 434 226 18 2,777

There is no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year (2014: Nil).

Mr. Shi Feng is also the Chief Executive Officer
of the Company and his emolument disclosed
above includes those of services rendered by
him as the Chief Executive Officer.
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13. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION, FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT EMOLUMENT (CONTINUED)

(b) Five highest paid individuals

The five individuals with the highest
emoluments in the Group include three
(2014: three) directors, whose emoluments
are included in the disclosures above. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2014: two)
highest paid individuals, whose emoluments fell
within the salary band of Nil to HK$1,000,000,
for the year ended 31 March 2015 were as

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

EZHH  IEERSFMALRSRAEZENS

(&)

(b)

TERSHMAL

AREBREZBESFMNALBEE=2(=-Z—N
F:=2)8F HBeERN X 2HE - &
E-ET-RFE=A=+—HIFE B TWHA
“E-NF: ME)ReHFMATZEHE (FH
SHENFEZE 1,000,000/ 2B 0T ¢

follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —ET-F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARBEFIT
Salaries, allowances and e R REMBER
other benefits 668 611
Discretionary bonuses BIFIEAL 134 235
Retirement benefit IR FET IR
scheme contributions 11 17
813 863

No emolument was paid by the Group to any
of the directors or the highest paid individuals
as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office
during the year (2014: Nil).

(c) Senior management emolument
The emoluments paid or payable to members

of non-director senior management were within
the following bands:

()

FR AEEGERTANEEFSAEZSHEMAL
S ERMEER/IMARINARE B R 2 2R
SkBEEAE (=T —mF - &) -

BREEEHE

ENSENEESREEERE s HeBE
o

2015 2014
—ZE—AF —ZE—mF
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000 7T 4 6

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A BTEERRMET

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

14. Y% - BMEKRRE

The Group REE
Computers
and other Motor
equipment vehicles Buildings Total
ERMREMBRE AE B¥ wst
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TRT AR¥TR AR%TR AR%TxR
At 1 April 2013 R-B-=FMA—-H
Cost AR 1,345 4,480 599 6,424
Accumulated depreciation ZEHTE (830) (2,598) (225) (3,659)
Net carrying amount REFE 515 1,882 374 2,771
Year ended 31 March 2014 BHZ-Z-—MF
ZA=+-HLEFE
Opening net carrying amount HIRRESE 515 1,882 374 2,771
Additions NE 1,112 881 - 1,993
Transfer from properties held for sale BREMEER
(note 19) (£ 19) - - 8,320 8,320
Disposals HE - ©8) - (98)
Depreciation nE (390) (816) (93) (1,299)
Exchange realignment B H AR - (13) - (13)
Closing net carrying amount B ERE B 1,237 1,836 8,601 11,674
At 31 March 2014 and 1 April 2014 R-E-mE=A=+—H
k-Z-MFEMA—H
Cost AR 2,452 5,242 8,919 16,613
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (1,215) (3,408) (318) (4,939)
Net carrying amount IREEE 1,237 1,836 8,601 11,674
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

14. Y13 - BE KRS (R)

(CONTINUED)
The Group (continued) AEE (4E)
Computers
and other Motor
equipment vehicles Buildings Total
SRR EMBRE AE g7 st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTR AR®TR AR%TxR
Year ended 31 March 2015 BZ_Z-1F
ZA=+-BLFE
Opening net carrying amount HAERESHE 1,237 1,836 8,601 11,674
Additions NE 383 592 - 975
Disposals HE - (483) - (483)
Depreciation e (500) (600) (293) (1,393)
Exchange realignment B H R - ) - )
Closing net carrying amount HREEFE 1,120 1,342 8,308 10,770
At 31 March 2015 R-Z-RF=A=+—H
Cost YR 2,835 5,348 8,919 17,102
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (1,715) (4,008) 611) (6,332)
Net carrying amount BREFE 1,120 1,342 8,308 10,770

At 31 March 2015, the Group’s certain buildings of
approximately RMB7,988,000 (2014: RMB8,253,000)
were pledged for other loans (note 25) of the Group.

RZE—RAF=ZA=Z+—H ZAEEBHARE
7,988,00070( —Z—4 : AR¥S,253,00070) 25
FRFRAER 2 B (M 25) (EHEH -

Notes Hiat -
(a)  Buildings held by the Group are located in the PRC. @  AEEFEFEFRAE e
(b)  Depreciation charges have been included in: (b) HEHZTEFA -
2015 2014
—E-RfF —ZT—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T AREFT
Consolidated statement of financial position 47 & B AR
— capitalised in properties held —BRERAERYE
under development 199 292
Consolidated statement of REEERER
comprehensive income
- selling and distribution expenses —HERDIHER 154 161
- administrative expenses —EEER 1,040 846
1,194 1,007
1,393 1,299
EBEEHEREARAT FEIMRE2014/2015 93




94

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-T-AF=A=t+-BLFE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES REYE
The Group REE
2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
At beginning of the year F4) 331,348 111,625
Transfer from properties held for sale EESE=—E/EL =804 53,710 237,477
Net fair value change credited/ A (R e 2EkE
(charged) to the K2 A THEZEFHE
consolidated statement
of comprehensive income 175 (17,754)
At end of the year FR 385,233 331,348

The investment properties included property interest
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2047 (2014: from 2043 to 2047). As
at 31 March 2015 and 2014, the building ownership
certificates of certain investment properties of the
Group have not yet been obtained. In the opinion of
the independent PRC legal advisors of the Group,
the Group is entitled to obtain the building ownership
certificates without legal impediment and is entitled
to lawfully and validly use the investment properties
during the year.

At 31 March 2015, an investment property
of approximately RMB295,353,000 (2014:
RMB245,736,000) was pledged against other
loans of the Group; besides, the building ownership
certificates of the Group’s investment properties
of approximately RMB67,933,000 (2014:
RMB66,053,000) were placed with the bank as
custody as at 31 March 2015 (note 25).

Investment properties are leased to non-related
parties under operating lease (note 30).

During the year ended 31 March 2015,
properties held for sale and with the carrying
value of approximately RMB16,504,000 (2014:
RMB126,194,000) (note 19) were transferred
to investment properties respectively as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental.
The fair value of these properties upon transfer
to investment properties of approximately
RMB53,710,000 (2014: RMB237,477,000).
The total net fair value change of investment
properties approximately of RMB37,381,000 (2014:
RMB93,529,000) was credited to profit or loss for the
year.
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RZE—RAF=—A=+—"H REWEHNARE
295,353,0007C( = ZF — Y F : A R # 245,736,000
TC) IMEAAREE Z HaE R 2 IR (FIzE25) o5 it
Gy RZZE—RHE=ZA=+—H AEEREYE
ZEEMEEEEH AR 67,933,000 T (=ZZF—Y
F: AR®66,053,00070) X FIRITERE (KM E
25) °

REYEDHE FELROE NOIERER (M
30) °

BHE_Z—RAF=-A=+—HIFER  EAEY
A ANEBA6,504,0007T (= F — P4 : 126,194,000
70) (1) 2 EMEERERENE  REA
ZEMEDREFNEE = FFU2EEHER
RS ZEEREREWEIMELTFE
#) B NREES3710,000( —E—MFE: AR
237,477,0007T) ° #5495 AR 37,381,000 7T (=
T—F . ARBE93,529,0007T) ZIREWEAFE
BERBIOAAFE ZBEERA -



15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The fair value of the investment properties at 31
March 2015 and 2014 was revalued by Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a
firm of independent qualified professional surveyors
who have the recent experience in the location and
category of property being valued, which was based
on the direct comparison approach, assuming sale
of the property interests in their existing state with
the benefit of immediate vacant possession and by
making reference to comparable sales transactions
as available in the relevant market while appropriate
adjustments and analysis are considered to the
differences in location, size and other characters
between the comparable properties and the subject
properties; and the income approach by taking
into account the net rental income derived from
its existing leases and/or achievable in the existing
market with due allowance for the reversionary
income potential of the leases, which have been
then capitalised to determine the market value at an
appropriate capitalisation rate.

The fair value of investment properties is a level 3
recurring fair value measurement. A reconciliation of
the opening and closing fair value balance is provided
below.

15.
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e IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

REWE (&)

BREVMER _T—RFN_ZT-—NF=A=+—H
ZRFHETHARBERBGEEDEBALE RIER
IR BYABRMEXNEMITHER T
KA NEABRARETENGE - HEDHNAE
BUBOERKE - MR ERRRERAMNANE
REHE  X2EHMMBZAELRIEERS
HUELBRYELRARMEELE - REREMR
BhEZ ZREHEE AR RS URUBEACE
RIKE - FTREERBHEEMERR RERKT
B EARGZHEERAFE  WHBEE 2 fJERE
ERAFHEEERE  HHERAREE ZENE
HERENMEAEENHEE -

BREMEZ A HEREIMEEERFEFE - F14)
RERRXFEESRBRETIAT -

2015 2014
—2-1f —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TT ARBFT
Opening balance (level 3 recurring FHEH (FESREEERTE)
fair value) 331,348 111,625
Transfer from properties held for B EMEER (3E19)
sale (note 19) 53,710 237,477
Change in revaluation of BREMEEHE B ARLMBA
investment properties included
in other income 175 (17,754)
Closing balance (level 3 recurring FRES (BIREFHEAFE)
fair value) 385,233 331,348
Change in unrealised gains or losses BR=ZA=+—BMFEES A ERZ
for the year included in profit or loss FAREH WS EEES (iE6)
for assets held at 31 March (note 6) 37,381 93,529
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

15.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

The following table shows the significant
unobservable inputs used in the valuation model

15. REWXE (|

TRIVREEBEA AT AANEAT A BERE AR -

Fair Significant Range of Relationship of
value Valuation unobservable unobservable unobservable Inputs
Properties hierarchy technique inputs inputs to fair value
BARUBE THBEEBEA TUBEERARERY
LIES NTEER fRERT BAHE BEcHE ATENER
Commercial offices 3 Direct Price RMB12,000- The higher the price,
in the PRC comparison per square meter RMB16,000 the higher the fair value
approach (2014: RMB12,900-
RMB15,000)
A SE /N EELEE FEHER AR#12,000tE B ATEER
AR 16,0007T
(ZZ—m%F -
AEE12900TE
AR#15,0007T)
Shop units 3 Direct Price RMB8,000- The higher the price,
in the PRC comparison per square meter RMB42,700 the higher the fair value
approach (2014: RMB13,289-
RMB34,600)
Bl B L BEELEA FEHER AR#8,000TE B ATEER
AR 42,700 7T
(ZZ—m%F -
AEE13289F
AR#34,6007T)
Shop units 3 Income Term yield 2.0% The higher the term yield,
in the PRC approach (2014: 2.0%) the lower the fair value
Reversionary 2.5% The higher
yield (2014: 2.5%) the reversionary yield,
the lower the fair value
L P E L W% G E 2.0% MAEWEEES  ATESE
(Z2—mF : 2.0%)
LG 25% ERREEERE  NFEBE

FABERMIALELE o

There were no changes to the valuation techniques

during the year.

NHEREDER B EZ KEEaERE (RE
BT EZR) -

E==210g

The fair value measurement is based on the above BIER
properties’ highest and best use, which does not
differ from their actual use.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015
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16.

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

16. RIEDQ R 2ES

The Company AT
2015 2014
—E-AfF —=—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTTT
Unlisted investment, at cost JEEMRE - LKA 285,452 285,452
(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each ) o )
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31 @ R-ZZE-—AF=A=+—B ZEWBERA

March 2015, were as follows:

(ZRBRBRATR) ZFHBHEIMT

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
ML, R ERTRAREER
ARER REXHH BA/GHER Ef MiE TEEH
Sino Harbour Property Holdings British Virgin 1 ordinary share 100% - Investment holding
Limited Islands (“BVI) of US$1
RBRUES 1RGREE REER
([ RERXES]) 1R EBR
Sino Harbour Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment holding
EBARAR BE 10,0007 7T REER
Enrich H.K. Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
BRBEEREBR AR B 100787 REER
Jiangxi Asia City Real Estate PRC US$25,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
IR M EEREBRAR thEl 25,000,000% 7T AR %
Fuzhou Pan Hong Kai Xuan Property ~ PRC RMB280,000,000 - 100%  Property development
Development Co., Ltd.
RS e EHEREBRAR HE AE ¥ 280,000,000 7 FEHERSE
Nanchang Liyang Decoration Limited ~ PRC RMB5,000,000 - 100%  Interior design and
(“Nanchang Liyang”) (note i) decoration
HEMEGRMIEERAR H AR 5,000,000 AERAT R EE
(TRE SRR 1) (B (i)
Nanchang Dingxun Co. Ltd. PRC RMB100,000,000 - 55%  Property development
(“Nanchang Dingxun”)
HESLEXERAR(MERAD AR100,000,000 7 Bt ERE
EREHEEEFRAR FERE2014/2015
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ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-T-AF=A=t+-BLFE

16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

(@ Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, each
of which is a limited liability company, as at 31
March 2015, were as follows: (Continued)

16. RHELQE 2z e (F)

@ m=

T-RAF=A=1—H TE2MBERF

(ZRERERATE) ZFIFHEINIMT « (&)

Place of Issued and fully
incorporation/ paid ordinary
establishment share capital/ Principal
Company name and operation registered capital Directly Indirectly activities
ML, R ERTRAREER
ARER REXNH BA/GEHER Ef# MiE TEEW
Leping City Fenghuang Jincheng PRC RMB24,500,000 - 51%  Property development
Industry Co., Ltd.
(“Leping Fenghuang’”)
“THEELBELERAT R AR 24,500,0007 FHERR
(T TEE)
Sino Harbour Development Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100%  Investment
holding
BEERERAR BE 18T BAZ100 REZR
Sino Africa Investment And Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Investment
Development Group Ltd holding
FEREEREERR AR BE 10,000 % 7C BH2100 HEEK
Sino Harbour development and Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100%  Dormant
investment Limited (note (i))
EBBRREBRRF (M) BE 10,000 7T BAZ100 EEER
Hangzhou Ganglian Real Estate Co., ~ PRC RMB309,833,000 - 100%  Property development
Ltd (note (i))
mMEBERBR AR (M) i AR 309,833,007 BAZ100 EHERME
Capital Manager Investment Limited BVI 50,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
(“Capital Manager”) (note (i) of US$1 each
GEL) RERLES 50,000 kB IREE 1% BA2100 REZR
TLZ B
Notes:
i . ) . Mzt
(i) These companies were newly incorporated during
the year ended 31 March 2014. i WERFRE D = E—NE= §=+—H FEF

(ii) Capital Manager alloted 50,000 ordinary shares of
US$1 each to the Group on 11 April 2013.

(i) On 19 June 2014, equity interests in Nanchang
Liyang held by the Group were transferred to
Nanchang Gangrui Trading Company Limited
(“Nanchang Gangrui”), Nanchang Gangrui is
wholly owned by the spouse of Mr. Wong, a
director of the Company, which held on behalf of
the Group under trust agreement dated 19 June
2014.
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(i)

FEL AL -

WREIR-ZFE—ZFH+— AR EFLE
50,000 fZ 72 AR E11E 1 T2 ZER -

RZFB—MFENH+NA  FEEFHEZHS T
BEREEREHSEHESFRAA([HSE
B (FEEEBERZNAEFTLLEZIETERE
F)URIEHE 5 —F—LIFENA T AHZ 55T
EAKALEGE -



16. INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16.

(b)

Set out below are the summarised financial
information for Nanchang Dingxun, a subsidiary

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

KB LR 2 ()

(b)

X —REAHAREMEBEAZAE
IR s 2 B R A A R 2 S B R

that has a non-controlling interests which is Eo
material to the Group.
Summarised statement of financial B AR R R =
position
As at 31 March
R=B=+—8
2015 2014
—B-RF —ZE—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Current TRE
Assets BE 818,367 629,621
Liabilities afE (254,193) (78,859)
Total net current assets REBEEFEASE 564,174 550,762
Non-current ERE
Assets BE 292 482
Liabilities afE (145,000) (125,000)
Total net non-current liabilities FEREIEEFEEEE (144,708) (124,518)
Net assets EERE 419,466 426,244
Accumulated non-controlling  R&HIEERER
interests 204,502 201,452
Summarised statement of comprehensive ZHKERPE
income
For the year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE
2015 2014
—E-HF —=—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
Revenue WA 74,862 -
Loss before income tax BrETS R ATE 1B (6,778) (6,226)
Total comprehensive income 2 HE KA (6,778) (6,226)
Loss allocated to a DR TIEER R B R
non-controlling interest (3,050) (2,802)

Dividends paid to a non-controlling 3215 - 3E4EIE 25 2 B2,

interest

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

16.

INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 16.

(b)

(Continued)

Summarised statement of cash flows

RHE AR s (]|)
) (%)
HERBREE

For the year ended 31 March
BE=ZA=+—HLEE

2015 2014
—E-HF —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T

Cash flows from operating RETHMELEEESRE

activities
Cash generated from/(used in) KEFEBMEEL/ (A B

operations 3,758 (162,887)
Interest received BUF B 597 391
Income tax paid BEARATER (8,384) -
Net cash used in operating AR TB TR FE

activities (4,029) (162,496)
Cash flows from investing RETBHMELEEESRE

activities
Purchase of property, plants BEME - HE L&E

and equipment (32) (254)
Increase in pledged bank deposits 12 I IFIR 1T 7K (5,349) -
Net cash used in investing activities % &% ) A7 FH 1 &/ F 58 (5,381) (254)
Cash flows from financing METEMELEREESRE

activities
Proceeds from new borrowings ~ ¥T1EE TS IA 200,000 135,000
Repayments of borrowings HEEE (110,000) (20,000)
Proceeds from issuance of BT AR FTSFRIE

share capital - 33,135
Net cash generated from BETB TR FRE

financing activities 90,000 148,135
Net increase/(decrease) in RERBESEEY

cash and cash equivalents i, CRd) HRE 80,590 (14,615)
Cash and cash equivalents at FUREMREEED

beginning of year 1,884 16,499
Cash and cash equivalentat EFXRBERESEEY

end of year 82,474 1,884
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17.

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES

The Group

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

17. REEDLECER

Unlisted investment at cost
Share of post-acquisition loss

Amount due from a joint venture

Jiangxi Ganghong Investment Co. Ltd. (“Jiangxi
Ganghong”) is a strategic partnership for the Group,
and engaged in property development in the PRC.
The contractual arrangement provides the group
with only the rights to the net assets of the joint
arrangement, with the rights to the assets and
obligation for the liabilities of the joint arrangement
resting primarily with Jiangxi Ganghong.

On 26 February 2015, the Group entered into a joint
venture arrangement with an independent third party,
Mr. Xu Jia Bao, to establish a joint venture company,
Sino Grace Holdings Limited (“Sino Grace”),
incorporated in Hong Kong with registered share
capital of HK$2. Sino Grace is principally engaged in
general trading and is currently inactive.

Under HKFRS 11, these joint arrangement are
classified as joint ventures and have been included
in the consolidated financial statements using the
equity method. As at 31 March 2015, the Group had
interest in the following joint ventures:

FLMIRE - KA
D EREBR B

KEE

2015 2014

—E-EHF —ZF—OF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®F T ARBEFIT

50,000 50,000

(4,252) (3,033)

45,748 46,967

138,906 135,470

184,654 182,437

TRABREEARAR(DIABK]) RAEEMNE
BAERH  ETRBEREFBERE - SHORHR
AEERRESHALERFEEFENEN M
BLHEERABRTZENERERTEBH

R-E—HF-_A-+ B AEEEBIE=7
BEBRETVAEMERINESTME LI ZE
BOENTEREBARAR(ER])  EELK
KE2HETT - BETENE—REFEL - BRER
JERRRARRE o

RETEHGRERNE1SR AERHBES
BECEREREEET AR AMSHE - R T
—HF=A=t-0 AREENTAZLEFH
Bl

Issued and fully

paid ordinary Percentage
Place of Principal activities share capital/ of equity interests
Company name establishment and place of operation registered capital held by the Group
ERTREHREER rEEEE
NGRS FR L1t 26 TEERREENY RA/ERER REBDLL
Jiangxi Ganghong PRC Property development, RMB100,000,000 50%
PRC (2014: 50%)
i) H FiERE - § ARH100,000,000 7T
Sino Grace Hong Kong Dormant, Hong Kong HK$2 50%
i N Emes B8 28T

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZF-AF=A=t+-ALFE

17. INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REgLEER (&)
(CONTINUED)
The Group (Continued) AEME (4E)
The aggregate amounts relating to Jiangxi UTHE AR IAEL(ERARERNERAED
Ganghong, which is considered as a material joint (RBERTEBNGE MB]mE) WARTET - T)
venture of the Group, that have been included in Fsr B TR MBRE R TSk o

the Group’s consolidated financial statements as
extracted from relating financial statements of the
Jiangxi Ganghong are set out below:

2015 2014
—E-AfF ZE—mF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥TR ARBT T

Results for the year ended 31 March BZ=A=1+—HIFEX&

Income A - -
Expenses X (2,438) (960)
Loss for the year FHEIE (2,438) (960)
Group’s share of result of a joint REEREEEEEEREER

venture for the year (1,219) (480)
Group’s accumulated share of result TEERBERGAEDEER

of a joint venture (4,252) (3,033)
Assets and liabilities as at 31 March R=A=+—BHEERAE
Non-current assets IERBEE - -
Current assets MENEE 277,172 274,002
Current liabilities mENBE (185,675) (180,067)
Net assets BEFE 91,497 93,935
Group’s share of net assets of AEEEEEEPENEEFE

a joint venture 45,748 46,967
Current financial liabilities (excluding nPpeHaE(EoHk

trade and other payables and Ho A A B R B AERR M)

provisions) (185,675) (180,067)
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17.

18.

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURES 17. REgLEER (&)

(CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued) AEME (4E)

The following table illustrates the aggregate financial TRARMEBTEEBESATENAETERD
information of the Group’s joint venture that is not WIEEREZE

individually material:

2015 2014
—E-hF —E—F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ TR ARKETT

Share of loss and total comprehensive  FREE A S EREE

income of a joint venture for the year MEEE AL - -
Aggregate carrying amount of the REBRGEPENERNETER

Group’s interest in a joint venture - -

At 31 March 2015, certain properties held under RZE—RAF=A=+—H THEBEHDARE
development of Jiangxi Ganghong amounting 146,253,000 7T.( = ZF—PU4 : ARHE 148,508,000 7%
to approximately RMB146,253,000 (2014: T ZETERPYEDRFEIABARGBRZAS
RMB148,508,000) were pledged against bank ZHRHTREMNIAEAEREEEERAR(NIEER
loans of the ultimate holding company and a fellow B ) 2 &EERARIN—RERMNB AR ZETE
subsidiary of Jiangxi HongKel.ong Industrial Limited FRAEHEAR o

(TFRZREEEERAEF) (“Jiangxi HongKelLong”)
which held the remaining 50% equity interest in
Jiangxi Ganghong.

Except for above, at 31 March 2015 and 2014, G ritEN RZE—RAEFERZZE—NF=A
neither contingent liabilities nor capital commitments =t+—HB FAEEVEEGIABBEREREIE -
are shared by the Group.
Amount due from Jiangxi Ganghong was unsecured, EMOT B AFIANEER R 8RBEREHRE
interest free and not repayable within 12 months from HEBRERT 128 B NEE -
the reporting date.
PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT 18. BAEHRYE
The Group REE
2015 2014
—E-—AfF —ZE—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTF T
Leasehold interests in land T EREE 972,146 526,559
Development costs FEER AR 510,763 592,122
Finance costs capitalised B BE A 84,299 35,775

1,567,208 1,154,456

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-T-AF=A=t+-BLFE

18.

19.

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT
(CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

Leasehold interests in land are located in the PRC
and have lease terms expiring from 2044 to 2079
(2014: 2044 to 2080). At 31 March 2015, certain
properties held under development of approximately
RMB348,132,000 (2014: RMB736,407,000) were
pledged against bank and other loans of the Group
(note 25).

At 31 March 2015, properties held under
development amounted to approximately
RMB1,041,893,000 (2014: RMB395,267,000) were
not scheduled to be sold within twelve months.

PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE
The Group

Properties held for sale included property interests
in land located in the PRC with lease terms expiring
from 2043 to 2080 (2014: 2043 to 2080). As at 31
March 2015, the carrying value of the operating lease
up-front payments on the leasehold interests in land
amounted to approximately RMB90,640,000 (2014:
RMB62,974,000).

During the year ended 31 March 2014, properties
held for sale with a carrying value of approximately
RMB8,320,000 were transferred to property, plant
and equipment as these properties were designated
as their permanent offices for administrative use (note
14).

During the year ended 31 March 2015, properties
held for sale with a carrying value of approximately
RMB16,504,000 (2014: RMB126,194,000) were
transferred to investment properties as these
properties were under operating lease arrangements
with third parties during the year to earn rental (note
15).

At 31 March 2015, certain properties held for
sale of approximately RMB390,790,000 (2014:
RMB366,330,000) were pledged against bank and
other loans of the Group; besides, the building
ownership certificates of the Group’s properties held
for sale of approximately and RMB17,917,000 (2014
RMB41,969,000) were placed with the bank as
custody respectively as at 31 March 2015 (note 25).

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

18.

19.

FAE YR ()

AEE (&)

THHEERURTRE  HERR TN FE—
THAFZEER(ZZE—NF: —ZUNFEE
TNZF) R-E—RF=A=1+—"H HARKE
348,132,000 (= ZF — M F : A R # 736,407,000
T ZETHRERYED TR UERAEEZR
TREMEFR (MIFE25)

RZE-—RARF=ZA=+—8B HARKE
1,041,893,000 7t (—Z & —PO4F : AR ¥ 395,267,000
TC) 2 B EN T AR N EE B HE -

FEWME
AEE

HFEYEREETE b MERER  RESR -
TH=F2_ZN\ZEF2MAEM( T —WF : =
TN=F=2_FTN\EF) R_TE—RHF=—A=1+—
B tifHERIZELHEBNAETENAA
R ¥ 90,640,000 7t (ZZF—PU4F : AR¥ 62,974,000
JL) °

BE_T-NMF-_A=+—HLFER  FEED
AR# 8,320,000 T2 FFEMXBREAEYE - MFEM
B RARZEMERIETE SIFITHERARZ KA
WA= (PHEE14)

HE-_Z-—AFE=A=+—BLHEERN-E@A
BEHARE16,504,000( —F—UF: AR
126,194,00070) 2 S EMHXEHEREWE - RE
BZEMEDNREFRNEE = HIUZKEHER
BEREVE S (BIRE15) °

R-E—HF=A=+—H  #H AR 390,790,000
T (ZZ—4F : AR 366,830,00070) & T4
EHEWMEREREBRITREMERAOEIR 1t
G RZEBE—RE=A=+—0 KEEFHELE
VENEZEME#EZED KN AR 17,917,000t (=
T—PE : AR 41,969,0007T) @ WEBRHIRITEE
& (Fisx25) »
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

20. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 20. FEUWBRFR
The Group AEH
The aging analysis of accounts receivable that were 7 A ] Bl 2k BE B8 AR R E 2 8 HA e AR SR 2 BR
past due but neither individually nor collectively ESONTIAT ¢
considered to be impaired is as follows:
2015 2014
—2-51%F —E-ImEF
RMB’000 RM,B'OOO
AR%ET T ARBT T
Based on invoice date *E?E?ﬁz— HHEETE
Less than 3 months past due wmE PR =/ A 1,543 669
Receivables that were past due but not impaired EAERRE RN HRIELAE TEIE AR -

21.

relate to a number of independent buyers. Based on
past experience, the Directors considered that no
impairment allowance is required as there has not
been a significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.

REBALER ESTR/ANEEERTMEA
% '''' HE) N AARIDBAR AR 2B E - Bk A R

29 o

PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. FANFEKHEBERRIR
The Group The Company
A5 07
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-5f —T-mF —E-1f —T-mF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AEETT ARET T AERE T
Prepayments (note a) N IE(IKH ita) 115,400 465,478 191 202
Other receivables (note b) HAt s (fisto) 39,627 51,756 - -
155,027 517,234 191 292
Notes: Biat -
(a)  As at 31 March 2014, prepayment included a deposit @@ R-ZF—WF=H=+—H BANZEEEZT TN
paid to the Hangzhou Bureau of Land and Resources (7 m @iﬁﬁﬁﬂ? = fy\/&E % 412,200,000 - /’F/‘% Vg
I B+ )R /5) of RMB412,200,000 to secure a land el .%ﬂ///ﬂ?ifﬂ@ﬁ#% Az -—FE—=F=H =+
grant contract dated 28 March 2013 for the acquisition H 89 1 # /1] 58 & [F] B9 FFF o 4? A48 fc /ﬁ /%/\ R
of land use rights of the land in Hangzhou, the PRC. 506,000,0007T * A5 ER = PRy — F AR A
The total consideration of the acquisition amounted to W HIE HR—FE—mERH = 7‘/1 H B fﬁ?ﬁiiﬂ@
RMB506,000,000 and the Group settled the outstanding FERE o
consideration on 1 April 2014 and the corresponding
land use right certificate was obtained on 28 May 2014.
(b)  As at 31 March 2014, other receivables of the Group b) R=-ZF—mFE=F=+—H KEFAREI 070,000
amounted to approximately RMB9,070,000 were EH?H/W@/I TIBAEAEAT « WA 1% )51 8 AR —
unsecured, interest-bearing at monthly interest rate of FRNEH °

1% and repayable within one year.

None of the other receivables is either past due or
impaired. The other receivables related to counterparties
for which there was no recent history of default.

The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate
their fair values as these financial assets which were
measured at amortised cost, are expected to be repaid
within a short time scale, such that the time value of
money is not significant.

BRI RE - X ZHFERE
M JEN A TR RAT I AREHTFOER ©

HRZE 2 B E LKA 2 - AR

EEHE R FIERE - TRRIRGRRIAES - HE A8
EEE TEX -

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

22. STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS, PLEDGED 22, AEBMHHBRITER CEFREURBESRETE
DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK £
BALANCES
The Group The Company
i NG
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f “E-ME —E-Tf —E-QNE
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
i3 ARBT R ARETT N S ARBTT
Cash and bank deposits Be RENER 757,063 631,540 91 %
Less: i
Deposit pledged against banking RXAANERRTRE
facilties granted to the mortgagees [ibesitiolesA (a) (49,403) (37,272) - -
Deposit restricted for construction work R EET 817 - (30,000) - -
Deposit pledged against bill payables ~ BLERZEMERNZR () (20,000) - - -
Deposit pledged for bank and other RRTREMER
loans BANER (©8&() (850,000) (496,500) - -
Structured bank deposits EEUERTER ) (154,000) - - -
Cash and cash equivalents for the BRARERERMER
purpose of the consolidated RERRESEED
statement of cash flows 183,660 67,768 91 2
Notes: Vi
(a)  The deposits were pledged to certain banks as security (@)  ZORTEE31 AR - TFA A E FR7TE HFE AR H B Ay

(®)

(©

(@)

(e

in the PRC as detailed in note 31. These banks provided
mortgage loans to purchasers for acquisition of properties
from the Group. The pledge will last for the period from the
date of draw-down of mortgage loans to the date when
the certificates for housing ownership are granted to the
property purchasers. Such charges will be released upon
the certificates are granted to the property purchasers.

The bank deposit of approximately RMB20,000,000
(2074: Nil) with interest rate of 2.99% (2014.: Nil) was
pledged against bill payables of the Group (note 23) as
at 31 March 2015.

The bank deposits of approximately RMB100,000,000
(2014: RMB330,000,000) and RMB230,000,000 (2014:
Nil) with interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.68%
(2014: 4.25% to 4.68%) were pledged against other
loans due to be settled over and within twelve months
after the reporting period respectively (note 25) as at 31
March 2015.

The bank deposit of approximately RMBZ20,000,000
(2014: RMB166,500,000) with interest rate 2.35% (2014:
3% to 3.3%) was pledged against bank loans due to be
settled within twelve months after the reporting period
(note 25) as at 31 March 2015.

The structured bank deposits of the Group of
approximately RMB154,000,000 (2014: Nil) were
principal-protected yield enhancement bank deposits
carrying a range of minimum interest rate of 2.82% per
annum and could be enhanced to a range of maximum
interest rates of 4.05% per annum which were to be
indexed to market exchange rate of US Dollars (“US$”)/
HKD during a pre-determined period of three months.
These deposits were pledged against bank loans due to
be settled within twelve months after the reporting period
(note 25) as at 31 March 2015.
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22,

23.

STRUCTURED BANK DEPOSITS, PLEDGED
DEPOSITS AND CASH AND BANK
BALANCES (CONTINUED)

At 31 March 2015, approximately RMB755,889,000
(2014: RMB630,973,000) were cash deposited
with banks or other financial institutions in the PRC.
These balances were denominated in RMB. RMB is
not freely convertible into foreign currencies. Under
the PRC Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sales and Payment of
Foreign Exchange regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for foreign currencies through
banks in the PRC that are authorised to conduct
foreign exchange businesses.

ACCOUNTS AND BILL PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND
OTHER PAYABLES

22.

23.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

gﬁ'&ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁ C BEAREARBRERBITE
(&)

R-EBE—AF=A=+—8 AR 755,889,000
T(ZZE—MFE : AR 630,973,0007T) BIFERT
BRI EMSmEENIRS - ZEEHBUAR
Bl - ARETT BRI INE o IRIEP BN
PEE BHEDI R ATE - SEELMEETERTE A%E
BB B EREEITINEERNRITHEAR
Mo HAGNEE o

FENRRRRRE « BETRUR - RUGREAR A
558

The Group The Company
58 b O\
2015 2014 2015 2014
“E-1f E-ME —E-If —E-mF
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
fizE AR¥TR ARETL ARBTR ARBTL
Accounts and bill payables ERERRER (a) 65,294 23,995 - -
Accruals, receiptsinadvanceand ~ FE3H5UE » BGHER
other payables HitEfF0E
Receipts in advance s 655,531 358,027 - -
Accruals and other payables EATEREMERTE () 299,343 295,192 64 64
954,874 653,219 64 64
Notes: Htat -
(a)  The aging analysis of accounts and bill payables, based @  ETEARERIZEE AT EZ R TT -
on invoice date, is as follows:
2015 2014
—E—FF ZEF—gF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREF T
Less than 3 months DR =1EA 24,833 13,083
3 - 6 months =2 1A 27,026 3,165
6 months — 1 year NEAAZE—F 8,077 6,175
More than 1 year —FLF 5,358 1,572
65,294 23,995

As of 31 March 2015, bill payables refer to payables due
to third party suppliers which were guaranteed by bank
for settlement, and secured by the pledge of the Group’s
bank deposits of approximately RMB20,000,000 (note
22).

R-FE—RFEZH=+—H  ENEZGEENE= T
JER R EITHTE - RARITIER - WA EFHIARKE
20,000,000 7T B9#R7T 175K (Mt 22) By E FRATHLA o

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILL PAYABLES,
ACCRUALS, RECEIPTS IN ADVANCE AND
OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

Notes: (Continued)

()

Accrued construction cost and other project-related
expenses were included in accruals and other payables
amounted to approximately RMB176,054,000 as at 31
March 2015 (2014: RMB105,804,000). The amount was
accrued based on the terms of the relevant agreements
and project progress and was not due for payment as at
the end of the reporting period.

As at 31 March 2015, other payables included
an amount of approximately RMB490,000 (2014:
RMB490,000), which was payable to Jiangxi Dongjing
Property Development Limited (JT7015E 21 EF#E
MR2YA]) which held 49% equity interest in the Group’s
subsidiary, Leping Fenghuang. These payable balances
were insecured, interest free and repayable on demand
in cash.

As at 31 March 2015, other payables included an
amount of approximately RMB5,245,000 (2014:
RMBS8,467,000), which was payable to Jiangxi
HongKelLong. These payable balances were unsecured,
interest-free and repayable on demand.

As at 31 March 2014, other payables included an
amount of approximately RMB9,751,000 which was
payable to Shanghai Dingxun Enterprise (Group) Limited
(LR E R (EE) FR 2 A])(“Shanghai Dingxun”)
which held 45% equity interest in the Group’s subsidiary,
Nanchang Dingxun. These payable balances were
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand in
cash.

24. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

25.

23. ENRIKEEE - BARUE - ARFOEREME
5008 ()

Kt - (&)

(b)

R-ZF—AFZA=+—H FAEFFBREME
1950 IE B FE 5B 560 K R A 118 B 1B BT % 49N R
176,064,000 7T (= ZF —P74F - AR 105,804,000T)
JEFT IR T IRIE 1A 155 A I X R IR BB E - AR
BT AE R A R F BE A o

R-FB—RF=A=+—H EMENKEEZIAL
#490,0007T (= ZF—P94F - ALH490,0007T ) FENTLE
R FHERRFRAFIANE B H AL L
FIZEFBLE 49% 1% © SZZ BN AR BAERA -
BRARBSF UL 2 EE -

R-FE—FFEZA=+4+—H BEWEMZBEEZHIAR
45,045,000 7T (—F—P9F : AR 8,467,0007T) FEST
JTOHEE BRI o ZZ e BRI - T8
WEILEIGER

R-FE—WME=ZA=—4+—H EtEMNZBEZHIAR
159,751,000 T FEIT | 2R B % (5 ) BR A A ([ L5
SR ) BIE - BB A FEENE L Al SR 45% 7
1 o ZEEM B FERIT - T 5B EIT T E

24, MW FEMHEDRRE

The Company AT
The amounts due are unsecured, interest-free and REUR /FEAT 2R IB A KR « 68 R/BIR B
repayable on demand. BiE -
BANK AND OTHER LOANS 25. SRITRHEMEN
The Group REH
2015 2014
—E-REF —E—PF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B s ARET T ARET T
Bank loans — secured BITER BRI (@) 439,332 495173
Other financial institution loans — secured ~ E/h 4 piIE E 7 — B K (b) 738,500 628,500
Total borrowings BEE 1,177,832 1,123,673
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25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

The Group (Continued)

The analysis of the carrying amount of the bank and

other loans is as follows:

A (1K)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015

BE-Z-A5=B=1+—-HLEE

25. MITREMER (H)

RITREMERZREESFTOT

2015 2014
—E-RF —T-EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B EE AR¥T T ARBTT
Current &
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B —FERF|HHEE S
within one year or on demand RERERZIBITERED 389,332 288,990
Portion of other financial institution loans B —F A F|#EE K
due for repayment within one year or RERERBEMESH
on demand HREERE D 308,500 20,000
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B — & HEE
after one year which contain RITERHD
repayment on demand clause (BHEREREREH) © - 66,183
697,832 375,173
Non-current FEFRE
Portion of bank loans due for repayment B — & EEE
after one year BITEFRHD 50,000 140,000
Portion of other financial institution loans 7B — & FIHAEE 2
due for repayment after one year Hith e s ERE D 430,000 608,500
480,000 748,500
Total borrowings BEE 1,177,832 1,123,673
The Group’s bank and other loans are repayable as AEEEEER ZRITREMEREOT -
follows:
2015 2014
—E-HF —Z=-mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Within one year or on demand —FRHFIFEK 697,832 375,173
In the second year REZFA 385,000 313,500
In the third to fifth year RE=ZZFRFNA 95,000 435,000
480,000 748,500
Total borrowings BEE 1,177,832 1,123,673
EBEEHEREARAT FEIMRE2014/2015
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HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

25. BANK AND OTHER LOANS (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

(©

Sino Harbou

At 31 March 2015, the bank loans amounted to
HK$273,333,000 (equivalent to RMB215,332,000) (2014
HK$315,000,000, equivalent to RMB250,173,000)
and RMB224,000,000 (2014: RMB245,000,000) were
denominated in HK$ and RMB respectively and bore
interest at floating rates ranging from 4.71% to 8.40%
(2014: 4.71% to 8.61%) per annum.

Bank loans amounted to RMB215,332,000 (2014:
RMB250, 173,000) was secured by (i) personal guarantee
by Mr. Wong Lam Ping, the controlling shareholder
of the Company; (i) entire present and future issued
share capital of the Group’s certain subsidiaries;
and (iij) the Group’s bank deposits denominated in
RMB amounted to approximately RMB154,000,000
(2014: RMB1583,000,000) (note 22 (e)) as at 31 March
2015. Besides, the building ownership certificates of
the Group’s investment properties of approximately
RMB67,933,000 (2014: RMB66,053,000) (note 15) and
properties held for sale of approximately RMB17,917,000
(2014: RMB41,969,000) (note 19) were placed with the
bank as custody respectively as at 31 March 2015. These
banking facilities require the Group to adhere to certain
capital requirements. As at 31 March 2015, certain
financial covenants were breached. Pursuant to the terms
of the banking facilities, the bank can immediately cancel
or recall the facilities and request the Group to make
immediate repayment to the bank. Subsequent to the
end of the reporting period, the Group has been granted
the waiver in respect of the breached provisions from the
bank.

Bank loans amounted to RMB216,000,000
(2014: RMB235,000,000) was secured by the
Group’s properties held for sale of approximately
RMB204,008,000 (2014: RMB270,845,000) (note 19),
properties held under development of approximately
RMB211,895,000 (2014: RMB736,407,000) (note 18)
and corporate guarantee of Shanghai Dingxun as at 31
March 2015.

Bank loans amounted to RMBS8,000,000 (2014:
RMB10,000,000) was secured by the Group’s
bank deposits denominated in RMB amounted to
approximately RMB20,000,000 (2014.: RMB13,500,000)
(note 22(d)) as at 31 March 2015.

Other financial institution loans were denominated in
RMB and bore interest at fixed rates ranging from 6.15%
to 10.25% (2014: 6.15% to 7.95%) per annum.

As at 31 March 2015, other financial institution loans
were secured by (i) the Group’s property, plant
and equipment of approximately RMB7,988,000
(2014: RMBS8,253,000) (note 14); (ii) investment
properties of approximately RMB295,353,000 (2014:
RMB245,736,000) (note 15); (iij) properties held under
development of approximately RMB136,237,000 (2014:
nil) (note 18); (iv) properties held for sale of approximately
RMB186,782,000 (2014: RMB95,985,000) (note
19); and (v) bank deposits denominated in RMB
amounted to approximately RMB330,000,000 (2014:
RMB330,000,000) (note 22(c)).

As at 31 March 2014, the current liabilities included
bank borrowings of approximately RMB66,183,000
that were not scheduled to repay within one year. They
were classified as current liabilities as the related loan
agreements contain a clause that provided the lender
with an unconditional right to demand repayment at any
time at its own discretion.

r Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

25. MITREMER (H)

Mist -
(@)

(b)

©

RZFE—AFZA=Z+—H HUETRARKFE
H) R 77 B 7 72 5l 4273,3833,000% 7T (165 A B
215,332,000T) (=ZF—[94F : 315,000,000;57T * 1HZ
RA R ¥ 250,173,000 ) K A B # 224,000,000 7T ( =
T—pUEE : AR 245,000,0007T) * IEHEFA.71% 2
8.40%( —ZF—[04F : 4.71%F8.61% )67 FB)FIF:18 °

AR #215332,00 T (9 #RITEH (= F—MF - AR
#250,173,0007T ) B3 X T #E (R () K 2 7] 1% iR iR R ST
Bk 56 £ BT JELR - (ii) K EE B E T W18 2 Al AT B 5
B RAGHKE TR : R i) NEBR - FE—AF=H
=+ —HAA KM 154,000,000 7T ( —F—19F : ARK
153,000,0007T ) XA RIEEHERIRTTI750 (MTa£22 (€)
W R-FE—FEFE=F=+—H KEBFHALK
67,933,0007T (= F—U4F : ARH 66,053,000 #7#
BRI EEATEIEE (Wit 15) RAALK 17,917,000
T (ZFE—F . AR#41,969,000T) 8975 E W (KT
E19) D FITFERRITIEALE » (EBZZRITENNZE
Ko KREEEGRETEXES - R FE—HF=f
=F—H  FEEERTETFYBERAE - RIERTEN
18350+ BZHR7T A BIBF BRH B 1E fT R IERTT R N R B A
EERIFFEZE - RIFEHIE - KEBD S FET
BEERZIRITHE -

A K #216,0000007T( = £ — 4 F: A K ¥
235,000,000T) By#R7TH 57 I A EBR = F — A F
= H=+—H#AIA KB 204,008,000T (= F—PIF : A
R #270,845,000T) B EW 2 (H1a£ 19) + AIA R
211,895,000 (=F—H4F : AR 736,407,000 ) K]
BT 2 (Wt 18) R L2 A AJHER -

ARH8,000,0007T (= F—F - AKH10,000,0007T)
HIRITES A EFR - FE—AF=ZA=1+—HHIAE
# 20,000,0007T (= F—PJ4F - A 13,500,000 7T )4
A B BEEHER R TIZ 5 (15 22(d)) »

B2 EEERESUNREGHEL AT FA6.15% 2
10.25% (= F—[04F : 6.16%%27.95% ) HIELEFIFF8 »

R-FE-—RF=ZA=1+—H Bt L@@ ELHH
KU TETER : (VA EBYE - BERREHIAR K
7,988,000 7T (= F—[I4F : A R#82530007T) (Hit
14) i (i) IR E W) 4N K ¥ 295,353,000 (= E — 19
F: AR 245,736,000T) (H1aE15) + (i) I EH )%
HIA R 136,237,0007T (= F—P94F - #) (Hfa£ 18)
(V)5 EZELIN R 186,782,000 (= F—PI4F : A
F#95,985,0005T) (HaE19) © J (v) AN B 5HERIHR
TTTEFAINA R #330,000,0007T ( = F—PIF : ARK
330,000,000 ) (Hiit22(c)) °

R-F-—WFE=[=+—H ZBEEEEHIALE
66,183,000 7 K5 5] R — F AR FHIIRTT IS 3¢ © #1-MA
BIR X 135% 215 77 B 1 B 1T RE R0 B A SRR 1
ESEFHIET -



26. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

The Group

At 31 March 2015, deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
are provided at the tax rate 25% (2014: 25%). The
movement in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) arising
from temporary differences are as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

26. ELEBEEE (BF)

AEE

N-E—hF=A=+—0 BEHRBEEE (&
B)AFLZR 25% (—ZZ—PU4F : 25%) fHRBHE - B
BEEESVRERBEE (BRE)Z2EHMT

Deferred tax

Deferred tax liabilities in

assets in respect of fair
respect value change
of provision of investment
for LAT properties Total
B4 3 IB{E BREYE
BiREERE ATESBEH
ZELBIEEE ELBESE @5t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETTT ARETT ARETT
At 1 April 2013 R-E—=FmMA—H 19,706 (21,684) (1,978)
Deferred tax debited to REZEEMR
the profit or loss ZEEIE (4,694) (23,382) (28,076)
At 31 March 2014 and RZZE—WFE=RA=+—H
1 April 2014 kZFT—MFHA—H 15,012 (45,066) (30,054)
Deferred tax debited to REEEMG 2 BIERIE
the profit or loss - (9,345) (9,345)
At 31 March 2015 R-ZE-HEF=HF=1+—H 15,012 (54,411) (39,399)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss
carried forward to the extent that realisation of the
related tax benefit through the future taxable profits
is probable. The Group has no material unrecognised
tax losses to carry forward against future taxable
income at 31 March 2015 and 2014.

Withholding rate of ranging from 5% or 10%
is imposed on dividends distributed to foreign
investors. As at 31 March 2015, deferred tax liabilities
amounted to approximately RMB24,155,000 (2014:
RMB40,284,000) in respect of aggregate amount
of temporary difference of approximately RMB
483,100,000 (2014: RMB402,840,000) associated
with undistributed earnings of subsidiaries have not
been recognised. No deferred tax liabilities have been
recognised in respect of these differences because
the Group is in a position to control the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is probable
that such differences will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future.

EETRIBEESFNGEE 2 TRABE T AR -
AIREEBARKERTGENER 2 BARIANGE S
BR-R-_FT-—RAFR_FT-—NF=A=+—H &
SEWESARER IR R EEBEEARRE
ARBLBA ©

DR TINEREE Z BB THETEIT K 5% 5 10%
BBZ - R_E—RAE=ZRA=1+—H HHEB
RAIARADEBFNEEACEREZHBASBHARE
24,155,000 7T ( —Z— P4 : AR 40,284,0007C)
ZIRERIEE EY AR 483,100,000 70 (= Z— M
F . AR 402,840,0007T) HAR T AR c BRAA
EEBEEEHNZENBARZREBER BEEE
BB TR a] Bk ERE - MW ENZ S EZEE
RIELERIEEE -
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111




12

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ARE BTSRRI EE
For the year ended 31 March 2015
BE-ZF-AF=A=t+-ALFE

27. SHARE CAPITAL 27. R
Number
of shares RMB’000
BB EE ARETR
Authorised: ey
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each FRAE.01 BT LBk
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2014 and 2015 RZE-—MFNA—H  ZE—NMFR
—E-RF=R=1+—H 4,500,000,000 37,401
Issued and fully paid: BRTRARE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each EBREE.OT B L EER
At 1 April 2014, 31 March 2014 and 2015 RZZ-NENA—H ZT-MER
“E-HF=RB=1+—H 1,200,000,000 9,931
28. RESERVES 28. f#f&E
The Group REH

Details of the movements on the Group’s reserves
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity. The nature and purpose of the reserves are
as follows:

(i) Share premium

The share premium account of the Group
represents the premium arising from the issue
of shares of the Company at premium.

(i) Statutory reserves

According to the relevant PRC laws, the
subsidiaries are required to transfer at least
10% of its net profit after tax, as determined
under the PRC accounting regulation, to a
statutory reserve until the reserve balance
reaches 50% of the subsidiaries’ registered
capital. The transfer of this reserve must be
made before the distribution of dividend to
the subsidiaries’ equity owners. The statutory
reserve is non-distributable other than upon the
liquidation of the subsidiaries.

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

AEBEZ FREDFBHANRARZZIR - #HiB
ZMHERBEOIT

(i) KHEE

AEE 2 ROaBREANR ARG EETRN
PRELZEME -

(i) EEREE

REBHEBPEERE  HEBLARAMRETERE
FDEBRTEE 2 IR R AN E D 10% BREEX
TR BEEREEHRESNBAREMERN
Z50% ° RIRFBERARDIKEE THEBA
Al A A Z BT S AERBE T A DK -
HEH B8 2 BB RRES IR o
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28. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 28. s ()
The Company i/
Share  Retained profits/ Proposed final
premium (accumulated loss) dividend Total
Brwi/
R RE (RETER) BRRERE Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ANRETT AEETFT AEETT AEETFT
At 1 Apri 2013 RZZ—-=%NA-H 537,994 468 38,741 577,203
Loss for the year and total FNEERENZE
comprehensive income for the year & #2%8 - (1,485) - (1,485)
Dividend paid ERRE - - (38,741) (38,741)
At 31 March 2014 RZE-NE¥=A=1—H
and 1 April 2014 R-E-MEmA—A 537,994 (1,017) - 536,077
Loss for the year and total FANEEREAZE
comprehensive income for the year & #2%8 - (1,356) - (1,356)
At 31 March 2015 RZE-RE=A=1—H 537,994 (2,373) - 535,621
CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 29, BEARERE
The Group REH
2015 2014
—B-0F eSS
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETT
Contracted but not provided for in respect of BRECDTNEREE
- properties held under development of the Group —REEABTNE 163,993 515,044
- acquisition of a land use rights of land (note 21) — B T 2 T E A (Pt 21) - 93,800

On 1 April 2014, the Group fully settled the
outstanding consideration of approximately
RMB93,800,000 in respect of the acquisition of
land use rights of the land in Hangzhou, the PRC.
The Group obtained corresponding land use rights
certificate issued by the People’s Government of
Hangzhou City dated 28 May 2014.

The Company did not have any commitments as at
31 March 2015 and 2014.

R-Z—NENA—H  AEBZ2HEEHMEREIW
AL AR BN 2 T i E A A AR
93,800,000 7T Z & 4R E - AEBEBEEEAMM ™
ARBBREY A E—ZE—NER A -+ /B2
BE L FRERE

ARAR-T-—AFR-T-WNE=ZA=+—HL
BEATFIE -

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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30. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS 30. KEHERE
The Group REE
(@ The Group had future aggregate minimum @ AEEREDEREBETAIAELSCEHEmMNR
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating RER 2 BARTHE BRI T -

leases in respect of its properties as follows:

2015 2014
—E-RfF —ET—F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Not later than one year —FRN 3,160 2,934
Later than one year —F U BT BBRF
and not later than five years 12,927 13,607
Later than five years FFEUE 3,408 5,889
19,495 22,430
The Group leases out its investment properties AREEEEREYE  BHHATETRF B
which run for initial periods of ten to sixteen REERBEBTRIZEEY - HEREXIAES -

years, without option to renew the lease terms
at the respective expiry dates. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating IR BN AR IR A O] 48R AT AH B i OB 2 AR 4K
lease receipts under non-cancellable operating EHESRE -
leases.
()  The Group had future aggregate minimum (o) AEEMERE SRS EHEMRARRK
lease payments under non-cancellable SRz EHRERBENT
operating leases in respect of properties as
follows:
2015 2014
—E-RfF —Z=—mEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%ET T ARBT T
Not later than one year —FNR 112 121
Later than one year and —FLAEENBRARF
not later than five years 17 16
129 137
The Group leases properties under operating AEBREBELEHERHHEYE - SHFE
lease arrangements which run for initial period —FE=F  WARER AR EENEE -
of one to three years, with an option to renew HEBMEAES -

the lease terms at the expiry date. None of the
leases includes contingent rentals.

The Company does not have any operating RARW MBI TS EHEM N 2
lease payments under non-cancellable A EHESER o

operating leases.
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FINANCIAL GUARANTEE 31. BHiER
The Group NEE
The Group has arranged mortgage loan facilities for AEBEAETYESNERTHZIBER It
certain purchasers of property units and provided BRZEEFETREER R —HF=A
guarantees to secure obligations of repayments. =+—0B  BERNZERELAAR 580,043,000
As at 31 March 2015, the outstanding guarantees T(ZZE—MFE: ARM357,508,0007T) © % EE
amounted to approximately RMB580,043,000 (2014: REPRUATREBEBERI : (\BHEMEMG#EE
RMB357,506,000). Such guarantees terminate upon (—REREEMREYEE —MENIEMR)
earlier of (i) issuance of the real estate ownership (i) MEEREBILBERE ©
certificate which will generally be available within one
or two years after the purchasers take possession
of the relevant properties; or (i) the satisfaction of
mortgaged loans by the purchasers of properties.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BEEIRS
(@) In addition to the transactions and balances (@) BRZEUBBREMIDAEE RS REH
disclosed elsewhere in these financial G REBBEBEITUTERBERFRS ¢
statements, the Group had the following
material related party transactions:
2015 2014
—B-RF —ZE—mE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBTT
Rent paid to a fellow subsidiary ~ BfRIZMBE AR zEE 285 279
Car park rent paid to BfETES 2 FESHEE
a non-executive director 40 34

Rent paid to Pan Hong Investment, a fellow
subsidiary of the Group, for rental of an unit
of office premises which is held by Pan Hong
Investment, based on the terms agreed and
signed on a tenancy agreement. Car park rent
paid to Ms. Chan Heung Ling, a non-executive
director of the Company, for rental of a car
park based on the terms agreed and signed on
a tenancy agreement. As the annual amount
of the rents payables under the tenancy
agreements are less than HK$3,000,000,
the continuing connected transaction
contemplated thereunder will qualify as de
minimus transaction under Rule 14A.33(3)
of the Listing Rules, that is exempt from the
reporting, annual review, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval
requirements.

MAEERRZMBRARDUBIRERIEA Z A
EYEBENHSME  BBREZHESE
TR EL DT 2 HERHIETOETT -
MEEEBEMNENARRIFENTESRME K
T2 EESHAS RS HET B R 2 HEW
FEFET mRBREBEAERSENZFE
A4 253,000,000 T - ETE N
TR ERELSBAERBE FMRANE
14A.33Q) IEA T AHEREKER S + BEAX
SENRCETHR  FEEZ  DMAERERE
SIEHEZIRE ©
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R IR AR

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-Z-RF=A=1+—ALEFE

32.

33.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(b) Compensation of key management
personnel of the Group

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors and certain of the highest
paid employees, are disclosed in note 13.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s activities expose the Group to a
variety of financial risks which comprise market risk
(including foreign currency risk and interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall
risk management focuses on the unpredictability
of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. The Group currently does not have
any written risk management policies and guidelines.
However, the board of directors meets periodically
and cooperates closely with key management to
analyse and formulate strategies to manage and
monitor financial risks.

The Group is not engaged in trading of financial
assets for speculative purposes. The most significant
financial risks to which the Group is exposed to be
described below.

(@) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair
value or cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate. The Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes
in market interest rates. The Group’s interest
rate risk mainly arises from deposits at banks,
other receivables and bank and other loans
which bore interests at fixed and floating
interest rates. Bank and other loans arranged
at variable rates and fixed rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest rate risk and fair
value interest rate risk respectively. The interest
rate and repayment terms of the borrowing
outstanding at the end of the reporting period
are disclosed in note 25.
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BELIRS ()
(b) AEEEEEEASHH

AEBTIEEEABZHMN(BEENARE
EXENETESFMES ZHM) RERHE
13 °

BBEREE B RREE

AEBEXBSARBAZZRBYBAR - BFET5
R (BENERR LA ERAR)  EERR MR
PEcRER AEB7ERBEREESHENR SR
MG Z ARFERME - WSRKEHARERBFRIRZ
BETMNZERZRIE - AEBERKILEEAAX
ZEBREEBREES - AT EXSTHERE
& THEIBEBABREAE - U RHIER
B A 2 I R B TS LR o

AEBEWEEENREABERZEREEREE - K
SEMEH R T 2P BERERIT

(@ R=EMRE

MEERESRTAZAFESIRSRERT
SRR RN R o ARE WA
MEERSREERN L PR MIGHREE 2%
B o AEEZMEEREBERERETEMNE R
FEM R B ZIRITH - EEUGRIA KR
TIREMER o LUFEH R R EE X582
RITREMERSAEE D HIEE RS REN
TJE\Be B XA R ERR o RIS IR AR E
BZEE 2N ERERGRRBERHE25



33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Interest rate sensitivity

If the saving interest rates had been increased/
decreased by 100 basis points at the beginning
of the year and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s profit after tax for the
year and retained profits would increase/
decrease by approximately RMB1,861,000
(2014: RMB2,693,000) respectively.

The 100 basis point increase or decrease
represents management’s assessment of a
reasonably possible change in interest rate
over the period until the next annual reporting
date. Changes in saving interest rates have
no impact on the Group’s other components
of equity. The assumed changes in interest
rates are considered to be reasonably possible
based on observation of current market
conditions and represents management’s
assessment of a reasonably possible change in
interest rate over the next twelve month period.

The sensitivity analysis included in the financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2014
has been prepared on the same basis.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the
counterparty to a financial instrument would fail
to discharge its obligation under the terms of
the financial instrument and cause a financial
loss to the Group. The Group’s exposure to
credit risk mainly arises from granting credit
to customers in the ordinary course of its
operations. The Group is also exposed to
credit risk arising from the provision of financial
guarantees and the amounts of which are
disclosed in note 31.

The Group continuously monitors defaults of
customers and other counterparties, identified
either individually or by group, and incorporates
this information into its credit risk controls. The
Group’s policy is to deal only with creditworthy
counterparties.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2015
HE-_Z-RF=A=+—HLEE

33. MHEMEEBEERBEK (E)

(a)

(b)

FIEER ()
FIRGBE

b & R R A8 hn, 6 4> 100 {E 2 24 1 B
BHEMEBERETE  AEEBFAKRBERNKL
REBHEF B, R4 AR EE1,861,0007T
(ZZ—4F + AR¥2,693,0007T) °

100 fRI B4 &Y 38 NSl D R B 1R BRI R 0
HANEETEFERS B RO KA
BT - RENEZEFHHAREEE iEmK
DVWEPE - WREBRAF ISR - FIRE
REBPARBEIEARE - RAKREEBEH =X
KRR+ =8 A BE A =5 R gE 2 E T
fi s

HE_T-—NE=A=+—HB I FENBHRX
PREVEBURE DT IR BRI 2 E RS -

EEERR

FEERRIESRMTAZHFHRERESRT
AV G ETEE TR AEREX T EER
2R AEEMEE 2 EERREZRER
EHEEKBRETREPREEE - REE
B REREVBERRELAZEERR €
B TERMIEST -

N6 [ A 4 B = T S AR B R 2 B P B LA
BFEHZHBRER  UKEBENBARLEE
FERRIEH] - AEREZBRBEEEELERYT
ZHFIRS -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)

()

(d)

Credit risk (Continued)

The Group’s management considers that all
the above financial assets that are not impaired
for at the end of reporting period are of good
credit quality, including those that are past due.

None of the Group’s financial assets
are secured by collateral or other credit
enhancements.

In respect of accounts and other receivables,
the Group is not exposed to any significant
credit risk exposure to any single counterparty
or any group of counterparties having similar
characteristics. The credit risk for cash at
bank is considered negligible, since the
counterparties are reputable banks with high
quality external credit ratings.

Foreign currency risk

Most of the Group’s transactions are carried
out in RMB which is the functional currency
of most of the group entities. Exposures to
currency exchange rates arise from certain of
the Group’s cash and bank balances which
are denominated in HK$, and US$. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments
to hedge its foreign currency risk. The Group
reviews its foreign currency exposures regularly
and does not consider its foreign exchange risk
to be significant.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the
Group will not be able to meet its obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are
settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group is exposed to liquidity
risk in respect of settlement of financial
liabilities, including trade and other payables
and bank and other loans, and its financial
obligations, and also in respect of its cash flow
management.
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FERR (&)
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 33. HMIEEMEREBZEREEK (HE)
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Liquidity risk (d) RBESER
The cash management of all operating entities EREER7HSHETRSIE  HdhaiEs
is centralised, including the raising of funds to EZSURNEIBEIRS Tk« NEB Y HE
cover expected cash demands. The Group’s AFEBERABREERRHE S F K - UHER
policy is to regularly monitor current and H@BATReHEIEREIZMIEHERM
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that FTOEERE  KMEMNESSHENREERZ R
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and FESFNK -
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer terms.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TREGB TAYIPEIMAEBEZE /A
liabilities based on the remaining contractual o NEFBEELSEADITORMARER
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the = °
table are the contractual undiscounted cash
flows.
Specifically, for term loans which contain a LHEZ  ResRRTEERNEITECIRE
repayment on demand clause which can be KEZBERZTHERME O MERMHE
exercised at the bank’s sole discretion, the RAES| EmIGHEN AMESER BEE
analysis shows the cash outflow based on Al A M xR HEBS R - BEEM
the earliest period in which the entity can be RITEEZEBBA ST ARG EER A R
required to pay, that is if the lenders were to B o
invoke their unconditional rights to call the
loans with immediate effect. The maturity
analysis for other bank borrowings is prepared
based on the scheduled repayment dates.
The Group EE
On demand Total Total
or within More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
R-%R 2 RERBE REAR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 March 2015 R=Z2-5%=A=+-H
Accounts and bill payables ~ FERERA R ZIE 65,294 - 65,294 65,294
Accruals and other payables  FE=t3E KA {th B FA0R 299,343 - 299,343 299,343
Bank and other loans FITREMER 748,441 482,349 1,230,790 1,177,832
1,113,078 482,349 1,595,427 1,542,469
Financial guarantee issued: ~ EfFH 2 BHE(R :
Maximum amount guaranteed HEEREE 580,043 - 580,043 -
At 31 March 2014 R=B-ME=R=1+-H
Accounts payable IR 23,995 - 23,995 23,995
Accruals and other payables  FEGTFUE Lt e 710R 293,502 - 293,502 293,502
Bank and other loans PITREMER 419,479 805,848 1,205,327 1,123,673
736,976 805,848 1,542,824 1,441,170
Financial guarantee issued: B 2 FITEE(R -
Maximum amount guaranteed Z&1ER4E 5 357,506 - 357,506 -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

The table that follows summarises the maturity
analysis of term loans with a repayment on
demand clause based on agreed scheduled
repayments set out in the loan agreements.
The amounts include interest payments
computed using contractual rates. As a
result, these amounts were greater than the
amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time
band in the maturity analysis above. Taking
into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not consider that it is probable
that the bank will exercise its discretion to
demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that such term loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment
dates set out in the loan agreements.

33.

M EBRERE B RREE (&)

(d)

RBESER ()

TR REZRKER GO ERETRE
B e 2 R AR R IEL 2 B H A
o - SR BRERAONXFEZFE
R Bt - hF2ESN LB A D475
[RER | HEMARTNEZ SR - ZEIAK
SEZHBEHR  EFLTRBBRITEITER
KA EROBIEE - EF0E ARTHE
B RIBEE S ek P8 i iR 5K H B (8

2o

Maturity analysis - Bank borrowings subject to
a repayment on demand clause based on scheduled repayments

HMEDH - REGEENAH
MERNGAREREBRANRITRE

On demand Total Total
or within More than undiscounted carrying
one year one year amount amount
R-%R —ENE AERAR FEAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT NS ARBT ARBTT
At31March2015 R-E-RF=ZA=+—H - - - -
At31March2014 H-Z—ME=A=1+—H 189,895 69,159 259,054 250,173

At 31 March 2015 and 2014, the Company
held no material financial liabilities and the
Company ensure that it maintains sufficient
financial support from Group’s subsidiaries to
meet its liquidity requirements.

The management has built an appropriate
liquidity risk management framework for
the management of the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group
manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate
reserves, banking facilities and reserve banking
facilities, and by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching
the maturity profiles of financial assets and
liabilities.
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(e)

(f)

33.
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M EBRERE B RREE (&)

Fair value (e) 2AFE
The fair value of the Group’s current financial HAAREEZ neeEEL BB NE
assets and liabilities are not materially different HAREIH - BtaZESmI A A FEEERE
from their carrying amounts because of HETESARER - ARHRE HH 2 REEH
immediate or short term maturity of these NEEWESERER - T RIFEEIERS S
financial instruments. The fair value of non- BENBEZATE -
current financial assets and liabilities is not
disclosed because the carrying values are not
materially different from the fair values at the
reporting date.
Summary of financial assets and liabilities n REJNEI-EHREEREBHME
by category
The categories of financial assets and liabilities T EREGENBRAEceREERE
included in the consolidated statements of BERERIANMEMAZIAR ¢
financial position and the headings in which
they are included are as follows:
The Group The Company
by NG|
2015 2014 2015 2014
—E-1f —Z-mE —E-1% 2
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETT
Financial assets SREE
Loans and receivables B R IR
Accounts receivable FEUER 1,543 669 - -
Other recelvables E YA 39,627 51,756 191 292
Amount due from ajoint venture  JEi—F AL EE 138,906 135,470 = -
Amounts due from subsidiaries VNG ¢ - - 267,965 269,219
Structured bank deposits EEERTER 154,000 - - -
Pledged deposits BEEBER 419,403 563,772 - -
Cash and bank balances Be RiFTES 183,660 67,768 91 92
937,139 819,435 268,247 269,603
Financial liabilities tREE
At amortised cost b 5D
Accounts and bill payables ERERRER 65,204 23,995 -
Accruals and other payables EF AR
it pE(IE 299,343 293,502 64 64
Amounts due to subsidiaries FERHBLRZE - - 8,083 8,083
Bank and other loans RTRABER 1,177,832 1,123,673 - -
1,542,469 1,441,170 8,147 8,147
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34. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 34.
The Group’s objectives when managing capital are:

(i) To safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as
a going concern, so that it continues to provide
returns and benefits for stakeholders;

(i)  To support the Group’s stability and growth;
and

(i) To provide capital for the purpose of
strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to ensure optimal
capital structure and shareholder returns, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the
Group and capital efficiency, prevailing and projected
profitability, projected operating cash flows, projected
capital expenditures and projected strategic
investment opportunities. The Group currently does
not adopt any formal dividend policy.

Management regards total equity as capital. The
amount of capital as at 31 March 2015 amounted
to approximately RMB1,397,949,000 (2014
RMB1,306,542,000), which the management
considers as optimal having considered the projected
capital expenditures and the projected strategic
investment opportunities. The net debts-to-equity
ratio at 31 March 2015 and 2014 were as follows:

EXEE
AEEEREARNZBER

() ERTEBBEGE N  AREARRS
B A REIR A

(i) XEAKBZRERER: R

(i) IREEARIEAERZ RBEIEES ©

REEEGRTE SR R EREEARLEE  UBRA
BREBAEBRIEHKZERROR - TEBAE
BARESHTENME AR - BRI K& IER &8N G
N FBRIEERERE - BRE AR R IR R
IR ER S - NEE B AT E RN E R EAREIK
5 o

EREERERBAERBER - R_Z—HF=A
=+t—H  BEXERLHEARME1,397,949,0007T
(ZZ—PU4F : AR¥1,306,542,0007T) © EIRBL
ERENEARIT RIE KRB ERERSEZ  RE
DESHERBEE RN_E—RER_T—NE= A
—+—HZEEFREE RS ENT

2015 2014

—E-AF —ET-F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T ARBT T

Accounts and bill payables JERBRFR R EE 65,294 23,995
Accruals, receipts in advance JERTFUE ~ TAUGE IR R EA

and other payables JETFIE 954,874 653,219

Bank and other loans HRITREAMER 1,177,832 1,123,673

2,198,000 1,800,887

Less: Cash and bank balances B IR MIRTTE (183,660) (67,768)

Pledged deposits BT R (419,403) (563,772)

Structured bank deposits R IEIRTT IR (154,000) -

Net debts B8 1,440,937 1,169,347

Equity FE= 1,397,949 1,306,542

Net debts to equity ratio B FEL R 103% 90%
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Financial Summary

B RS
CONSOLIDATED RESULTS mEEE
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
R —ZZT——-fF —T-=F —T-NFE ZZ—HF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 . RMB’000
AREFT AREFTRT AREFTT AREBTT AR¥TT
Revenue A 340,198 515,181 559,918 476,339 500,874
Profit before income tax BrPTISEE AT & 175,395 200,694 198,180 214,363 144,447
Income tax expense Frigfim= (51,694) (99,943 (72,960) (73,400) (54,574)
Profit for the year EREF 123,701 100,751 125,220 140,963 89,873
Attributable to: AT ALEN
Owners of the Company A RI#HA A 123,911 101,316 126,444 143,768 92,926
Non-controlling interests eI AE R (210) (565) (1,224) (2,805) (3,053)
123,701 100,751 125,220 140,963 89,873
Earnings per share BRER
Basic HAK RMB13.77 cents RMB9.14 cents RMB10.54 cents RMB11.98 cents RMB7.74 cents
ARE1377H  ARE914H ARE1054H5 ARE11.9875  ARE7.74%
CONSOLIDATED ASSETS, EQUITY AND REEE EZREE
LIABILITIES
2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
—F——% ZTf ZT-=-fF ZT-NF =FT-IHF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 . RMB’000
AREFT AREFTRT AREFTIT AREBTT AR®TT
(Restated)
(#£E7))
ASSETS &=
Non-current assets ERBEE 201,614 172,564 518,545 870,471 695,669
Current assets mENEE 1,379,918 1,621,887 1,802,687 2,388,071 3,076,132
Total assets WEE 1,581,532 1,794,451 2,321,232 3,258,542 3,771,801
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ## KR & &
Total equity RS 4AER 735,524 1,096,404 1,191,064 1,306,542 1,397,949
Non-current liabilities EREEE 5,952 80,000 436,478 793,566 534,411
Current liabilities mENEE 840,056 618,047 693,690 1,158,434 1,839,441
Total liabilities BEE 846,008 698,047 1,130,168 1,952,000 2,373,852
Total equity and liabilites 1z N B (&42%58 1,581,532 1,794,451 2,321,232 3,258,542 3,771,801
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Property Portfolio

eSSy

COMPLETED PROPERTIES
oHINE

Nanchang Honggu
Kaixuan Phase 2

BEIATE—S

Various retail units on
Level 1-4 and various
office units on
Level 6-14 of
Sino Harbour
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
BEAATEER
AL 1-4EETEE
[EHR6-14E
ETETERN
Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City Phase 1

—Low-rise residential
annexed with commercial

BRI -5-
EEfEhanE

Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting
Yuan Phase 1

BHEEER -4

Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan
Phase 2

BHEEER—4

Location Type

A £l

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, R, C
Honggu Tan Central
District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
hEIREEER
AR L
HAKE 15685

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, ~ C
Honggu Tan Central
District, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC

PETRAEET
AAZALE
AKE1568%;

No. 888 Huang JiaHuWest R, C
Road, Nanchang Economic
and Technology Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRG
hEIEEEE
HEMERITARE
BRI 0085

No. 766 Jinchao Avenus, R C
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi

Provincs, the PRC

HETEAENT
SERiET665

No. 766 Jinchao Avenus, R C
Fuzhou City, Jiangxi

Provincs, the PRC

HETEAENT
SERiET665

Site Area
in respect
of entire
project
BEEERN
fEHEE
(s.m)
(FK)

80,521

80,521

719,548

190,753

190,753
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Planned/
Actual Gross
Floor Area

R/ ER
BETR
(sq.m)
(FA)

R 116,214
(: 32,490

9,358

R: 19,58
C:6,174

R.89,115
C: 4,664

R 79,933
C:2,383

Effective
Group
Interest

FEEER
3 B

Tenure

R: Expiring on 100%
16 September 2073
C: Expiring on
16 September 2043
RR-Zt=%
NATARER
C:R-EM=%
NATABER

Expiring on 100%
16 September 2043

R-EN=F
AATARER

R: Expiring on 55%
18 May 2072

C: Expiring on
18 May 2052

RiM=Z+—%
TATNRER

C:R-En-f%
TATNBER

R: Expiring on 100%
31 January 2080
C: Expiring on
31 January 2050
R:RZFN\TE
—A=1T-BER
C:R-Ta%TH
—A=+-BERN

R: Expiring on 100%
31 January 2080
C: Expiring on
31 January 2060
RAZZN\ZE
—A=t-RERN
C:RZZn%E
—A=+-BERW

Approximate
Percentage
Sold and
Delivered
BER
RAE
Al

R: 98%
C: 86%

R:59%
G-

R: 94%
G:31%

R: 83%
G: 3%

Expected
Completion
Date

BHTAAS

Completed

BRI

Completed

Completed

BRI

Completed

BRI

Completed

BRI



Fuzhou Hua Cui Ting Yuan
Phase 3

BNERER=S

Yichun Royal Lake

City Phase 1

BEROM-4

Location Type

A £l

No. 766 Jinchao Avenus, R
Fuzhou Ctty, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC

BETRAENT
SERBTO6%

No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC
Yuanzhou District,
Yichun City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
HEIRLEED
RNEEGAE205%

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT

EEGHES

Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City Phase 1
- High-rise residential
annexed with commercial

RES
~ERTHES

Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City Phase 1
—Townhouses

BEREIE 8-

il

Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City Phase 2

BE oy

No. 888 Huang JiaHuWest R, C
Road, Nanchang
Economic and Technology
Development Zone,
Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
REIRERET
BEEERIRER
EF T 8885

No. 888 Huang JiaHu West ~ R
Road, Nanchang Economic
and Technology Zone,
Nanchang City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC

NN
BEMERITALR
BRI 8885

No. 888 Huang Jia Hu RC
West Road,
Nanchang Economic and
Technology Development
Zone, Nanchang City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
REIIRERET
BEMERRER
PRt

Site Area
in respect
of entire
project

BEBEH
i ER

isq.m)
(F5K)

190,753

607,084

719,548

719,548

719,548

Planned/
Actual Gross
Floor Area

3 L
REER
isq.m)
(Fr%)

"

R: 104,320
(:10,348

R.61,128
(:1,640

54978

R: 169,763
C:1,993

Tenure

3

R: Expiring on
31 January 2080
C: Expiring on
31 January 2060
R:H-T/\BE
—A=T-REW
C:R-ERZE
—A=T-BER

R: Expiring on
29 March 2077
C: Expiring on
29 March 2047
R:RZZttE
SAZThRER
C:R-ZMLE
ZAZThRER

R: Expiring on

18 May 2072
C: Expiring on

18 May 2052

RiWZ5LZE
EATNBER

C:RZEnz%
TATNRRER

R: Expiring on

18 May 2072
C: Expiring on

18 May 2052

RiWZZLZf
TATNBER

C:RZERzE
ERTNBRER

R: Expiring on

18 May 2072
C: Expiring on

18 May 2052

RIZE+ZF
ERTNBER

CR-ZR-F
BATNAER

Property Portfolio
MBS

Effective
Group
Interest

SEEER
B

100%

100%

55%

55%

55%

Approximate
Percentage
Sold and
Delivered
EER
RAE
At

33%

R: 74%
C:36%

NA

TER

NA

il

NA

TER

Expected
Completion
Date
RETH A

Completed

BRI

Completed

BRI

Q1CY2016

“ENE
E-ZERT

Q2cY2017

“E-tF
S-FRART

Q3CY2017

|1
S <

53 -

t
“EERT

EBREHEREERAR  FERE 20142015
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Property Portfolio

eSSy

PROPERTIES HELD UNDER DEVELOPMENT (continued)

LEGHESE

Yichun Royal Lake City
Phase 2

o6

FUTURE PROJECTS
FHER

Nanchang Sino Harbour
Kaixuan City
Phase 3-5

BEEEI =218

Yichun Royal Lake City
Phase 3-6

BRI =24

Site Area
in respect
of entire
Location Type project
BEEAN
ik Sl fhER
&
(Fhx)
No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, R 607,804
Yuanzhou District,
Yichun City,
Jiangxi Province, the PRC
hEIREEET
FMRERAE299%
No. 888 Huang Jia Hu RC 719,548
West Road, Nanchang
Economic and Technology
Development Zone,
Nanchang Ctty, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC
REIRERET
HREMERITALE
PRt
No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, RC 607,084

Yuanzhou District, Yichun
City, Jiangxi Province,
the PRC

HETRLEED
=MEEFAE299%

Sino Harbour Property Group Limited Annual Report 2014/2015

Planned/
Actual Gross
Floor Area

3 L
REER
isq.m)
(Fr%)

105,000

686,900

1,047,038

Tenure

3

R: Expiring on
29 March 2077
C: Expiring on
29 March 2047
RR-ZttE
=AZThEER
C:RZEMLE
ZRAZThRER

R: Expiring on

18 May 2072
C: Expiring on

18 May 2052

RiWZFLZE
ERTNBRER

C:RZZR-%
TATNRRER

R: Expiring on

29 March 2077
C: Expiring on

29 March 2047

RiN-ErtE
ZR=thAER

C:RZENtE
ZR=thBER

Approximate

Effective  Percentage
Group Sold and
Interest Delivered
EER

SEEER RAE
B& At
100% N/A
TR

55% N/A
0l

50% N/A
i

Expected
Completion
Date

BHTAAS

Q20Y2015

—I-1f
ETEERT

Phase 3:
QiCY2018

Phase 4:
Q1CY2019

Phase 5;
Q1CY2020

—R =7

FERAT

Phase 3.
Q4CY2017
Phase 4:
Q1CY2019
Phase :
02CY2020
Phase 6:
QBCY2021
-8
“E3+F
FMERAT
M -

E-SEHT
i

FZEFERT



FUTURE PROJECTS (continued)

KHEE(E)

Leping Project

4778

Hangzhou Ganglian Sino
Africa Tower Project

MER FARER

Location

ik

Hushan Meiyuan
Reclamation Farm,
Leping City, Jiangxi
Province, the PRC

PEIEL LT
RUBEERES

Southwest junction of
Moganshan Road and
Shenhua Road, Gongshu
District, Hangzhou City,

Zhejiang Province, the PRC

BT R AR
RTARHEAREA

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT

HERENR

Levels 1 and 2 of Block 2,
Unit 02 to 06 on Level 1
of Block 6 and a 3-storey
kindergarten of Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan

REAAEE-R_E
NE-EREBER
~E-ERhkE

Various retal units on
Level 1-4 and various
office units on Level
6-9, 11-24 of Sino Harbour
Kaixuan Center, Nanchang
Honggu Kaixuan
BELAFEEEA L
4EETREERRGY,
N-UEETETEEN

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue,
Honggu Tan Central
District, Nanchang City,

Jiangxi Province, the PRC

PETRAEET
AAZPLE
LAKE15685

No. 1568 Honggu Avenue,
Honggu Tan Central
District, Nanchang City,

Jiangxi Province, the PRC

PETRLEETANE
BOEAAKE 1568

Site Area

in respect

of entire

Type project
BEEAN

Sl fEEE
(s.m)

(%)

RC 333,341

C 20482

¢ NA

TER

C NA

Planned/
Actual Gross
Floor Area

3 L
REER
isq.m)
(Fr%)

394,600

81,928

4,461

22481

Property Portfolio

e
Approximate
Effective ~ Percentage  Expected
Group Soldand  Completion
Tenure Interest Delivered  Date
EER
LT T \
£ B& Bl BERHAS
R: Expiring on 51% NA  Phaset:
17 June 2074 Q4CY2018
C: Expiring on Phase 2:
17 June 2044 Q4CY2019
Phase 3.
Q4CY2020
R:R=BLME B -5
fTﬂﬂ:BE‘/ﬁ “2-)\E
C:R=ZTmmF FERRT
~ATERER -8
S ol
EMEEAI
= = I
FERRT
Expiring on 100% N/A~ Under planning
6 April 2054
RZSHRE BB E
RA~AER
Expiring on 100% NA  Completed
16 September 2043
KZEM=% TER BRI
AATREER
Expiring on 100% NA  Completed
16 September 2043
RZTE=% MER BRI
NATRBER
EREHEEEFRAR FERE2014/2015
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Property Portfolio
MEHLE

Site Area Approximate
in respect Planned/ Effective ~ Percentage  Expected
of entire ~ Actual Gross Group Soldand  Completion
Location Type project  FloorArea  Tenure Interest Delivered ~ Date
EER
BEEEN  RH/ER SEEER RAE
e Sl fhER BEER F8 B& Bl BERHAS
(s9. m) (sq. m.)

(Frk) (¥7%)

PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT (continued)

SERENR(E)

Various retail units on No. 299 Yiyang Avenue, C N/A 1,494 Expiring on 100% NA Completed
Level 1.and 2 of Block 2, 3, Yuanzhou District, Yichun 29 March 2047
6, 7 of Yichun Royal City, Jiangxi Province,
Lake City the PRC

EEDMNE2 36,71 HETREERD 0l RZEMLE MER BRI
F-R-BETTEER FMEEGARE205% ZRZthA

PROPERTIES OCCUPIED BY THE GROUP

HAREEE 2%

Level 25 and 26 of Sino No. 1568 Honggu Avenue, G N/A 1,232 Expiringon 100% NA Completed
Harbour Kaixuan Center, Honggu Tan Central 16 September 2043
Nanchang Honggu Kaixuan District, Nanchang City,

Jiangxi Province, the PRC

B EES TEIREHETAAE TR RZZM=£ MER BRI
iP5 R20BE hLBAAKE 16683 NATRRER

Unit 1502 of Entrance B of No. 28 Zhongshan West R N/A 166 Expiring on June 2069 100% N/A Completed
the South Buiding of Road, Xihu District,
Minshi Garden Nanchang Ctty, Jiangxi

Province, the PRC

LETERMEBET HEIREMETENE iR RZTNE MER BRI
1502% IR 285 ~AER

R: Residential R: %

C: Commercial C:B%

The “Planned Gross Floor Area” and “Expected [FREBIZEEE ] & [TaEERK BHR ] THRIRE IR fE v & (E1h
Completion Date” are based on the best estimate by the FHER - ZEH TR RIEREEMES) -
management. These figures may change as the projects

progress.
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